
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Community Safety, 
Environment and Residents 

Services Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 28 June 2017 
7.00 pm 

Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Larry Culhane (Chair) 
Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor Sharon Holder 
 

Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ainsley Gilbert 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy  
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

20 June 2017 
 

 
 

www.lbhf.gov.uk/Councillors-and-Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Community Safety, Environment and 
Residents Services Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 
28 June 2017 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  1 - 5 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 

 

4.   ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR   

 The Committee is asked to elect a Vice-Chair for the 2017-18 Municipal 
Year. 

 

5.   PARKS COMMISSION REPORT  6 - 25 

6.   20MPH SPEED LIMIT - SPEED SURVEYS RESULTS  26 - 37 

7.   AIR QUALITY REPORT  38 - 89 

8.   WORK PROGRAMME AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  90 - 91 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Community Safety, 
Environment and 

Residents Services 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Monday 24 April 2017 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Larry Culhane (Chair), Iain Cassidy and 
Steve Hamilton 
 
Other Councillors: Stephen Cowan and Wesley Harcourt 
 
Officers: Nick Boyle – Chief Transport Planner, Christiaan Uys – Traffic Orders 
Officer, Richard Evans – School Travel Adviser, Kathy May - Head of Waste and 
Street Enforcement, Georgio Tafla – Commercial Waste Manager.  
 

 
40. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 March 2017 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

41. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Dewhirst and 
Holder. 
 

42. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

43. SCHOOL TRAVEL PLANS  
Richard Evans, School Travel Adviser, explained that the service supported 
80 Hammersmith and Fulham schools in preparing school travel plans which 
aimed to reduce car use and increase active travel.  
 
Mr Evans explained that there was evidence that an active journey to school, 
such as walking or cycling, could improve pupils’ academic performance, as 
well as reducing congestion and air pollution. A third of 11 year olds were 
either overweight or obese and active travel would also help to reduce this. 75 
of the borough’s 344 places of education were within 150 metres of a road 
where the level of nitrogen dioxide was above the legal limit; reducing the 
number of cars travelling to these schools would help to improve the quality of 
air pupils were breathing. 
 
The service used a wide range of incentives to get schools to complete travel 
plans and promote active travel including: 

- Bike it sessions which were fun activities involving bicycles such as 
decorating bikes or using one to make smoothies. 

- Small grants for environmental improvements to schools which would 
help encourage active travel. Grants had been spent on covered 
waiting areas, new access paths and cycle parking. 

- Balance bikes being provided to younger classes to help teach them 
how to ride bicycles. All the balance bikes used were converted from 
unwanted old children’s bicycles. 

- Larger engineering projects such as traffic calming. 
- Children’s competitions such as designing the pictures accompanying 

20mph zones or traffic calming. 
- Car free days. 
- Facilitated research projects for children at the Urban Studies Centre. 
- Transport for London’s Star Accreditation scheme. 

 
Car use on the school run had fallen from 20% to 13% on average across all 
Hammersmith and Fulham schools since STPs were introduced in 2004-5.  
However, Mr Evans provided several examples of schools with small 
catchment areas where there are still high levels of car use, e.g. at St John’s 
Primary School where 92% of pupils live within 2 kilometres of the school and 
yet 23% travel by car. At some schools car use continued to exceed 40%. 
Richard Evans felt that further reductions in car use could only be achieved if 
other more radical interventions were introduced, for example cameras to 
enforce keep clear markings could be used to deter parents from driving and 
parking dangerously, whilst at a school in Camden daily temporary road 
closures had been implemented to keep cars out and children safe.  
 
Councillor Hamilton said that road closures would only be possible in some 
areas. Richard Evans agreed, and said that such measures could only be 
introduced with the support of the school and local residents. Councillor 
Harcourt asked whether members of the committee were happy with the idea 
of roads being closed. The Chair said that subject to local people’s views on 
the detail of the closure the idea seemed a good one.  
 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Hamilton noted that a proportion of pupils lived more than two 
kilometres away from their school and asked what alternatives to driving were 
promoted. Richard Evans explained that cycling and public transport were 
promoted, as were car sharing schemes and park and stride initiatives. 
 
The Chair asked if police were enforcing no stopping markings and whether 
the new cameras to enforce these zig-zag markings had been used 
elsewhere. Richard Evans said that police did enforce the lines but that 
parents returned to bad habits when there were no police at a school; a 
significant trial of camera enforcement was underway across Hillingdon and 
their advice on how useful the system was would be sought. 
 
The Chair noted that a number of schools did not engage in school travel 
planning and asked whether there were any common reasons for this. 
Richard Evans said that he did not know why schools failed to engage in the 
process but he did try to get them to, for example, by attending Headteachers 
meetings and promoting schemes on the schools’ intranet. Where schools 
needed planning permission for changes to their buildings they could be 
required by planning officers to engage and develop a travel plan. Councillor 
Culhane asked what support was available to schools to make engaging 
easy. Richard Evans said that he had a budget to pay for supply cover for 
teachers working on school travel plans and that it only took one person at a 
school to take a lead on the issue to start the process; staff, parents and 
pupils could then be engaged through surveys etc. 
 
Councillor Cassidy asked how it could be that all of the West London Free 
School’s parents could have signed no car agreements and yet the school still 
had 23% of pupils being driven in. Richard Evans explained that the 
agreements were simply ignored by parents and that the school not enforce 
them. 
 
The Chair thanked Richard Evans for his work to improve travel to school and 
wished the service well in continuing to increase rates of active travel. 
 
 

44. THE FUTURE OF PARKING IN HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM  
 
Nick Boyle explained that a number of significant parking projects been 
delivered recently and further improvements were planned for 2017-18.  
 
150 on street electric vehicle charging points had been introduced and every 
home in Hammersmith and Fulham would be within 400m of their nearest 
charging point. There were plans for rapid charging points and the installation 
of trickle charge points in lamp columns was being planned.  
 
The Council had supported the expansion of car clubs in the borough, 
including getting free membership for all residents of the Bluecity electric 
vehicle car club.   
 
Pay by phone had been introduced and the borough wide roll out was nearly 
complete. New parking ticket machines would be installed over the coming 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

months and these would allow residents to pay by card at the machine, as 
well as accommodating the new £1 coin.  
 
The programme of review for controlled parking zones would carry on to 
ensure that zones continued to meet the needs of residents. Each zone had 
now been reviewed three or four times since it was introduced and so there 
were rarely any changes needed. There would need to be further reviews 
around the Chelsea FC stadium as that was redeveloped. 
 
Councillor Harcourt said that providing good electric vehicle charging facilities 
was an important part of the Council’s plan to improve air quality. He 
explained that rapid charging points would be very important in the future, 
especially for taxis and commercial vehicles, whilst lamp column charging 
points would be great for residents who wanted to charge their vehicles 
overnight.  
 
Councillor Hamilton asked whether the street lighting network had sufficient 
capacity to charge electric vehicles. Nick Boyle explained that UK Power 
Networks had confirmed that the network would be able to cope with 
significant numbers of electric vehicles being charged across the borough. 
Trials were already taking place in Hounslow and in Kensington and Chelsea. 
The Council was starting to identify where there was demand for the 
installation of lamp column charging equipment.  
 
The Chair asked whether residents were being told of the improvements 
which were planned. Nick Boyle said that they were and Councillor Harcourt 
added that good early communications were important as they might 
encourage people to swap for an electric vehicle. The Chair asked whether 
data on usage of charging points and electric vehicle ownership was being 
collected to use when lobbying government. Nick Boyle said that a range of 
data was being collected to help persuade government of the value of electric 
charging points. 
 
The Chair asked when the pay by phone roll out would be completed. 
Christiaan Uys explained that there were three zones left to complete, which 
would be finished in the coming weeks. The programme had been delayed 
slightly because of problems with the signage contractor failing to complete 
the necessary works however the programme had only slipped by a short 
period of time. The Chair asked how popular pay by phone had been where it 
had been rolled out. Christiaan Uys said that about two-thirds of those parking 
now used pay by phone. This would increase further once visitor permit 
parking could be added to the system. Councillor Harcourt said that pay by 
phone was very convenient and he was pleased that it was now available to 
residents. 
 
Councillor Cassidy asked then the reconsultation of part of Zone T would take 
place. Nick Boyle explained that the consultation would start in late Summer 
or Autumn.  
 
 
 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

45. COMMERCIAL WASTE SERVICE  
 
Kathy May explained that the Council’s Commercial Waste Service collected 
business waste from 2,200 businesses across the borough. Every business 
had to make arrangements for their waste to be collected by a registered 
waste carrier and there were also a number of commercial organisations 
which provided this service. The Council had introduced its own Commercial 
Waste Service to generate income and to ensure that collections were done 
properly.  
 
For 2016/17 income had been slightly below the target set for the service, 
however, there had still been an increase of £140,000 over 2015/16. The 
income of the service was sufficient to cover the cost of providing it, although 
it was hard to accurately measure the cost of disposing of trade waste as this 
was collected alongside residents’ domestic waste to save on collection 
costs. 
 
A night time enforcement team had been set up to ensure that trade waste 
was being correctly disposed of and these officers had not only helped to 
reduce the amount of waste being dumped on the streets but also increased 
the amount of business the commercial waste service had.  
 
Councillor Hamilton noted that the number of night time enforcement officers 
had been reduced since the scheme’s launch. Kathy May explained that after 
the initial pilot it had been felt that two officers would be sufficient to carry on 
the service. The viability of the service was regularly reviewed.  
 
The Chair asked what the problems commonly encountered with other 
commercial waste contractors were. Georgio Tafla explained that some 
contractors regularly missed collections, whilst others failed to use marked 
bags which meant they might be collected by the wrong carrier, or by the 
Council as part of its general street cleansing. Kathy May said that where 
poor practice was impacting on the streets the Council would contact the 
waste carrier and the business to ensure that arrangements were improved. 
 

46. WORK PROGRAMME AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The work programme was noted. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.10 pm 

 
Chair   

 
Contact officer: Ainsley Gilbert 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 5



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 

RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY AND 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
28 June 2017 

 

 

Parks Commission recommendation for protecting the borough’s parks and 
open spaces 
 

Report of the Director for Safer Neighbourhoods 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Policy and Accountability Review and Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: David Page 
 

Report Author: 
Ian Ross 
Parks Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 7938 8194 
E-mail: Ian.Ross@rbkc.gov.uk  
 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report is to provide an update on the recent Parks Commission including 

public meetings, chaired by Councillor Vincent.  To present the commission’s 
recommendation to  the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and 
Residents’ Services (Councillor Harcourt),  and seek this committee’s 
endorsement of the recommendation that the Council pursues a Deed of 
Dedication with Fields in Trust to meet the administrations manifesto 
commitment to protect the borough’s parks and open spaces in perpetuity 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That the Policy and Accountability Committee: 
 

2.1 Note the contents of the report 
 
2.2 Endorses the recommendation of the Parks Commission that the Council 

protect the borough’s parks and open spaces via a Deed of Dedication with 
Fields in Trust. 

 
2.3 Recommend that the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and 

Residents’ Services and relevant Director work with the Parks Commission 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Ian.Ross@rbkc.gov.uk


and individual park groups to progress their specific deed of dedication with 
Fields in Trust. 

 
2.4 Acknowledges the positive input from all those involved in the Parks 

Commission in reaching a common consensus. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In 2014 the Labour Party made a manifesto commitment in their ‘The change 

we need’ document that if elected they would  seek to afford the borough’s 
parks and open spaces with better protection: 

 
Protecting our parks 
The council should be a trusted custodian of our parks. Instead they have 
signed over Hammersmith Park to private developers, who now charge £60 
for football where it used to be free. They have even tried to license 
Ravenscourt Park for raves, late night drinking and wrestling. Labour will: 

 

 Put our parks in a residents’ trust to prevent them being sold off 

 Maintain fair access that keeps our parks open to all and restricts their use 
for private events and by out-of-borough schools. 

 
3.2 Since Autumn 2014 officers have been looking at the various options available 

to deliver this commitment while providing a solution that will not impinge on 
the Council’s ability to carry out day-to-day management, and  provide 
protection in perpetuity for the  future benefit of residents. 

 
 
4. OPTIONS CONSIDERED, DELIBERATED AND THEN DISCOUNTED 
 
4.1 Do nothing 
 
4.2 This option maintains the current status quo 
 
4.3 With this option the governance and strategic vision of parks and open spaces 

is limited and remains the same. Therefore, not in line with the administrations 
aims and aspirations to further protect parks and open spaces. 

 
4.4 Limits access to potential external funding available to the Council with this 

option any reduction in financial contribution from the Council is unlikely to be 
to be replaced by third party funding. 

 
4.5 A borough-wide Parks Trust 
 
4.6 A number of authorities have now set-up ‘Arm’s Length Management 

Organisations’ (ALMOs) some of which include parks and open spaces. Some 
examples in London are the London Borough of Redbridge who have created 
Vision Redbridge and the London Borough of Wandsworth who have created 
Enable Leisure and Culture. 

 

Page 7



4.7 In order for such a trust to operate successfully it needs a certain amount of 
autonomy as well as a board of trustees.  Ultimately the trustees will set the 
direction of any organisation and have a high degree of autonomy.  it is 
entirely possible these trustees may come with distinct and individual views   
and wish to exercise their influence. Objectivity including  political neutrality 
could be  lost and the works of the trust could  be subject to individual and 
political influence 

 
4.8 In addition while savings can be achieved through this mechanism it is likely 

such an organisation would want their own staff and therefore there would be  
costs and liabilities associated with this. 

 
4.9 To date the only recognised  intendent area wide trust to exist is the Milton 

Keynes.  The Milton Keynes Parks Trust was created in 1992 to care for most 
of the city’s green space and was endowed with a substantial property and 
investment portfolio, giving the trust a net asset value of circa £85,000,000.  
The income from this portfolio pays for the vital work of nurturing and 
enhancing the landscape. It is entirely self-financing.  The majority of land 
managed by the Parks Trust is covered by a 999 year lease; Milton Keynes 
Council retains the freehold. 

 
4.10 Granting a lease like that of the Milton Keynes Parks Trust would give the 

Council almost no influence going forward.  The Council is also not in a 
position to offer an endowment to that provided in Milton Keynes and 
therefore continued support from the Council would be required. 

 
4.11 The advantage to such an organisation is that it is likely to be able to access 

external funding, which is not available to the Council. 
 
 
4.12 Individual Parks Trusts 
 
4.13 Many of the points raised above are applicable to this option. 
 
4.14 Individual parks trusts are likely to put much more onus on the individual 

trustees because the size of organisation. They will never generate or 
guarantee enough income to cover staffing costs and therefore continued 
support from the Council will be required. 

 
4.15 Having multiple parks trusts is also likely to make it difficult to find enough 

individuals to fill the required positions on multiple trusts. 
 
4.16 Some sites by their very nature offer more commercial and income generation 

opportunities and therefore this would put some sites at an advantage against 
those where such opportunities are not available.  These commercial and 
income generation opportunities may also be of the nature, which the 
administration is seeking to provide protection from. 

 
4.17 The advantage to this option is that those involved are likely to be local 

residents and therefore the management and operation of sites would 
hopefully be more tailored to that of the local community and residents. 

Page 8



 
4.18 Conclusions 
 
4.19 For the reasons outlined above and after much debate at the public parks 

commission meetings noting the administration’s commitment to provide 
additional protection to the borough’s parks and open spaces all of above 
options were discounted by the group. 

 
5. THE PARKS COMMISSION 
 
5.1 The Parks Commission was formed by the current administration with the 

purpose of considering how to provide additional protection to the borough's 
parks and open spaces as per the manifesto commitment previously made. 

 
5.2 The commission held its first meeting on the 17 January 2017 and then  

subsequently  two further meetings on the 7 March 2017 and 23 May 2017.  
The Parks commission and meetings was  chaired by Cllr Vincent. 

 
5.3 The meetings have been well attended with representitives from over 15 of 

the borough’s parks and open spaces.  There have also been attendees who 
have a general interest in the borough’s parks and open spaces rather than 
specific sites. 

 
5.4 The first meeting looked into the background of the commission and why it 

had been convened and discussed potential options.  At the end of this 
meeting it was decided to invite Fields in Trust to the second meeting to give a 
presentation on their organisation and the merits of their Deed of Dedication. 

 
5.5 David Sharman, Fields in Trust Development Manager, attended the second 

meeting and gave the presentation requested along with answering questions 
from the attendees.  The presentation is attached in Appendix One. 

 
5.6 The Deed of Dedication offers protection to sites by acting as a covenant; the 

deed is registered with the Land Registry and is therefore done in perpetuity. 
 
5.7 It is proposed each site has its own Deed of Dedication and therefore each 

one will be tailored to individual sites.  Within the deed will be a list prohibited 
acts including the sale or grant of a long term lease of the green space and 
prohibited activities (these will be bespoke for each site but may for instance 
be a limit on the number or type of events held at a site each year).  Any 
proposals in the future that fall within the prohibited acts or activities would 
require the consent of the independent body, Fields in Trust, to execute and 
would be considered by the Fields in Trust trustees. 

 
5.8 The Fields in Trust committee would not unreasonably refuse permission for 

activity outside the Deed of Dedication but would seek to ensure the Council 
has adequately consulted and the proposed activity is broadly in line with their 
aims and objectives and beneficial to the individual site concerned. 

 
5.9 A copy of Fields in Trust’s Local Authority Draft Non-Charitable Deed of 

Dedication is attached in Appendix Two. 

Page 9



 
6. FIELDS IN TRUST 
 
6.1 Fields in Trust were founded back in 1925 as the National Playing Fields 

Association (changing their name to Fields in Trust in 2007) by King George 
V.  Their mission is the same now and as it was then: to ensure that everyone 
– young or old, able or disabled and wherever they live – should have access 
to free, local outdoor space for sport, play and recreation.  These spaces are 
vital to building happy and healthy communities and sadly continue to be 
threatened by all kinds of development.  

 
6.2 Fields in Trust are a national charity and operate throughout the UK to 

safeguard recreational spaces and campaign for better statutory protection for 
all kinds of outdoor sites. 

 
6.3 Since it was founded by King George V in 1925, Fields in Trust has been 

privileged to have the support of the Royal Family. 
 
6.4 The Duke of Edinburgh was President of Fields in Trust for 64 years - it was 

one of the first charity roles he took on as Queen's consort.  In the early years 
The Duke was very involved in the running of the charity and frequently came 
into the office.  His staunch support took many different forms including 
participating in fundraising cricket matches, opening protected fields and 
hosting key events and all helped to make a real difference. 

 
6.5 In 2013 his grandson The Duke of Cambridge stepped into the role of 

President following this patronage of the successful Queen Elizabeth II Fields 
Challenge.  The Duke, frequently accompanied by his wife, The Duchess of 
Cambridge, has unveiled newly dedicated fields, launched new programmes, 
and encouraged both landowners and the public to support our work. 

 
6.6 Fields in Trust are governed by an independent board of trustees who bring 

together a wide range of expertise and knowledge in relation to parks and 
open spaces. 

 
6.7 Over 2,600 sites are now safeguarded by Fields in Trust.  Glasgow City 

Council who undertook a similar exercise to the one being done in 
Hammersmith & Fulham and are looking to provide protection/safeguard to 27 
sites. 

 
6.8 Fields in Trust run their own funding programmes, which are open to sites with 

a Deed of Dedication.  Any borough sites that had a Deed of Dedication would 
therefore become eligible to bid for this funding. 

 
7. NEXT STEPS 
 
7.1 Following the  meetings including the work of the parks commission , and 

subject to the committee’s endorsement, officers will then take a similar report 
to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents’ Services 
(Cllr Harcourt) seeking his  permission to enter into a Deed of Dedication for 
those sites where it is applicable. 

Page 10



 
7.2 Further work will be required to identify all the restrictions and covenants 

associated with individual sites. 
 
7.3 Some sites already benefitting from ‘enhanced’ covenants may not need the 

Deed of Dedication but this judgement will be made on a case-by-case basis 
in consultation with Legal Services and lead councillor for this project. 

 
7.4 Noting the positive contribution made those attending the Parks Commission 

meeting it is intended that as part of the process individual meetings will be 
held with interested parties from specific sites to agree what should be 
included in the final deed. 

 
7.5 Additionally, again noting the positive nature of those who attended the Parks 

Commission meeting and the openness for discussion/debate it was agreed 
that similar meetings would continue to be held where all those 
groups/individuals could come and have an open discuss between 
themselves and with officers and councillors.  It was suggested these 
meetings maybe themed to allow focus but ultimately should be for the benefit 
of the borough’s parks and open spaces.  It is proposed these meetings are 
held a maximum of three times per year. 

 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The entering into the Deed of Trust would constitute a dispoal of public open 

space and so appropriate proceedure under S..123 of the local Governmemt 
Act 1972 would need to be followed including advertsing intention to dispose 
in a local paper and considering any objections. . Also the relevant power for 
the Council to enter into the deeds would need to be identified with a case 
made out for the rational for the disposal. Entering into a transaction for the 
purpose of fetteringthe discretion of future administrations could be open to 
challenge and so specialist counsel’s advice should be taken. 

 
8.2 Enquires have been made of other authorities as to what powers of disposal 

thet have used, but no responses have been forthcoming 
 
8.3 Implications verified/completed by: Dermot Rayner, Senior Property Solicitor, 

tel. 020 8753 2715  
 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There would be legal costs involved in setting up the proposed arrangement 

alongside land registry fees.  As no budget currently exists to cover these 
costs, a source of funding would need to be identified. 

 
9.2 Significant officer time would be required to set up the proposed arrangement. 

Consideration needs to be given to whether this requirement can be met from 
current resources, or if additional temporary staff would be required. The 
staffing budget is currently fully committed, so additional funding would need 
to be identified for any additional resources. 

 

Page 11



9.3 Clarification needs to be provided around any future costs associated with the 
proposed arrangement and, if any costs will be incurred on an ongoing basis, 
how these costs would be met 

 
9.4 Implications verified/completed by: Lucy Varenne, Finance Manager, tel. 020 

7341 5777. 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1 Notes from Parks 
Commission meetings 

Ian Ross Safer Neighbourhoods/ 
Holland Park 

 
  

Page 12



APPENDIX ONE - Fields in Trust presentation: 
 

 
 

 

Page 13



 

 
 

 
 

Page 14



 
 

 
 

Page 15



 
 

 
 

Page 16



 
 

 
 

Page 17



 
 

 
 

Page 18



 
 

 
  

Page 19



APPENDIX TWO 
 
Fields in Trust – Local Authority Draft Non-Charitable Deed of Dedication 

 
 
 

FIELDS IN TRUST – PROTECTED FIELDS 
Draft Non-Charitable Deed of Dedication  

Local Authority Protected  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[  NAME OF LOCAL AUTHORITY  ] (1) 
 

and 
 

NATIONAL PLAYING FIELDS ASSOCIATION (2) 
 
 
 

[    NAME OF THE SITE  ] 
Annotations in red 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



THIS DEED OF DEDICATION is made on the  day of   20                              
 
BETWEEN  
 
(1) [  ] and its successors in title of [address] (the Council); and 

(2) NATIONAL PLAYING FIELDS ASSOCIATION, operating as Fields in Trust, of Unit 2D 
Woodstock Studios, 36 Woodstock Grove, London , W12 8LE a Royal Charter Organisation 
established for charitable purposes (registered charity number 306070) and its successors in 
title (FIT)  

(the Council and FIT being together called the Parties) 

WHEREAS: 

The property more particularly specified in the Schedule (the Property) forms part of the corporate 

property of the Council. 

The Parties hereby agree that the Property will be dedicated in perpetuity in the manner and for the 

purposes set out below (but without any intention to create any charitable trust), and in 

accordance with the mutual undertakings given by the Parties.  

Clause 2 establishes the contract. 

3. The Council gives the following undertakings:  

3.1 Not to use the Property or permit the Property to be used for any purpose other 
than as a [public playing field and recreation ground]; 

3.2 Not to grant, allow, suffer or permit the Property to be used or is permitted to be 
used for any purpose outside clause 3.1 including for any occasional or specific 
period of time without the consent of FIT; 

The user clause refers to the property being for “a public playing field and recreation ground”.  
Depending on the property’s current or future use, the user clause can be amended by mutual 
agreement.  For example it could also reference buildings or facilities if the use is ancillary to the 
outdoor space.  

3.3 Subject to clause 4 or clause 5, not (in so far as it has the power to do so) to dispose 
of the Property without the consent of FIT;  

This clause establishes additional protection through FIT by requiring FIT’s prior consent to any 
proposed disposal.   

3.4 Not to erect, allow, permit or suffer any buildings, structures or alterations on the 
Property, the use of which is outside the permitted uses as stated in Clause 3.1 
without the consent of FIT;   

3.5 Not to grant, allow, suffer or permit the erection of any buildings, structures or 
alterations on the Property that would result in the total structural and building 
footprint of such buildings or structures to exceed twenty per cent of the total 
square footage of the Property; 

 

Page 21



Decisions relating to new buildings and structures, or alterations of the same, which fall within the 
user clause are solely in the control of the landowner or its tenant(s).  

 

3.6 To inform FIT without delay of any proposals, intentions or decisions to grant, allow, 
suffer or permit:  

3.6.1  Disposals of the whole or part of the Property;  

3.6.2  The erection of any buildings, structures or alterations on the whole or part 
of the Property whether inside or outside the user clause at clause 3.1; 

3.6.3  The temporary closures or uses of the whole or part of the Property; 

3.7 To provide FIT with information in response to any reasonable request by FIT 
relating to the use at clause 3.1; 

This clause supports the objective of protecting the site’s recreational use. Please refer to our Field 
Change Request Procedure which is published on our website http://www.fieldsintrust.org/  

3.8 To maintain the Property and so far as is consistent with its duties as a local 
authority to have regard to any advice given from time to time by FIT on the 
management and running of the Property; 

This clause establishes an advisory role for FIT without interfering with the management rights and 
responsibilities of the authority.  

3.9 To erect notices on the Property in the form of signage provided by FIT relating to 
the background of FIT and its protection of this field, giving recognition of financial 
support where required; 

3.10 To apply within three months of the date of this Deed on form RX1 annexed hereto 
for the registration in the proprietorship register of the registered title of the 
Property at the Land Registry of a restriction to the following effect:  

 / Whole 

“No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate is 
to be registered without a certificate signed by National Playing Fields Association of 
Unit 2D, Woodstock Studios, 36 Woodstock Grove, London, W12 8LE or by its 
conveyancer that the provisions of clause 4 of The Deed of Dedication dated   
        between [  ] (1) and National Playing Fields Association 
(2) have been complied with”; and 

/ Part 

“No disposition of part of the registered estate identified on the plan outlined in red 
annexed to a Deed of Dedication dated                                   between [                        ] 
(1) and National Playing Fields Association (2) by the proprietor of the registered 
estate is to be registered without a certificate signed by National Playing Fields 
Association of Unit 2D, Woodstock Studios, 36 Woodstock Grove, London, W12 8LE 
or by its conveyancer that the provisions of paragraph 4 of The Deed of Dedication 

Page 22



dated                                   between [                     ] (1) and National Playing Fields 
Association (2) have been complied with”; and 

 

This is an essential part of the land registration and protection process.   

3.11 To apply within three months of the date of this Deed on form AN1 annexed hereto 
for the registration in the charges register of the registered title of the Property at 
the Land Registry of a notice to the following effect: 

“By a Deed of Dedication dated                                      between [  ] (1) 
and National Playing Fields Association (2) /Whole [the land in this title] /Part [the 
part of registered estate identified on the plan outlined in red annexed to a Deed of 
Dedication dated    ] was dedicated for use as a [  ].”  

 
This is an essential part of the land registration and protection process.   

3.12 To supply FIT with evidence that the registrations referred to in clauses 3.7 and 3.8 
have been completed within a reasonable period of time after completion. 

4. Pursuant to clause 3.2, FIT shall not unreasonably withhold consent to any disposal of the 
Property provided that the Council at the request of FIT: 

4.1 Replaces or agrees to replace the Property with a piece of freehold land approved by 
FIT which is of equivalent or better quality than the Property, with equivalent or 
better facilities than the Property, of the same or greater dimensions than the 
Property, in the same catchment area as the Property, and as accessible to the 
public as the Property (the Replacement Site) and applies such of the proceeds of 
any sale of the Property as are necessary to do so; and 

4.2 Enters into another deed of dedication on the same terms as this Deed in respect of 
the Replacement Site.   

Clauses 4.1 and 4.2 take account of potential future change by guaranteeing flexibility in terms of 
specific location provided the specified criteria are met. 

5 FIT undertakes that it will not unreasonably withhold consent to any disposal of the Property 
at nil cost to any local authority or non-profit making organisation which will hold the 
Property and ensure that its use is compatible with clause 3.1, provided that the new 
landowner enters into another Deed of Dedication with Fields in Trust on the same terms as 
this Deed in respect of the Property. 

This allows for asset transfer.  

6. FIT undertakes that it will: 

6.1 Not unreasonably withhold consent to disposal of the Property or the erection of 
any structures upon it, subject to its duty to perform its charitable objects and 
provided that the provisions of clause 4 or clause 5 of this Deed have been complied 
with; 

6.2 Respond without delay to any notifications of intended disposal or erection of 
structures, or to any requests for advice; and 

Page 23



6.3 Notify the Council without delay of any concerns or matters of advice to which it 
requires the Council to have regard.  

7. The Council DEDICATES the Property as a public playing field and recreation ground for the 
benefit of the inhabitants of [  ] and thereabouts and the site will be titled Field in 
Trust Protected site, [  ].  

 
This is the essential clause referring to the dedication of the site and confirming its name.    The user 
definition (given as ‘playing field and recreation ground here) can be varied according to the site.   

 
 

IN WITNESS whereof this Deed of Dedication is executed the day and year first before written 

 

SCHEDULE  

/Registered 

[All of ]/ [Part of] that freehold property known as land at [                            ] which is identified on the 
plan outlined in red and annexed to this Deed being [all]/ [part] of H M Land Registry Title Number 
[                         ]. 

/Unregistered 

[All of]/ [Part of] that freehold property known as land at [description of the land in the document] 
described in the [enter type of document i.e. conveyance] dated [insert date] and made between 
[enter party] of the one part and [enter party] of the other part which is identified on the plan 
outlined in red and annexed to this Deed. 

 

 

 

EXECUTED as a DEED by affixing the  
The COMMON SEAL of  
[                                                  ]  
in the presence of:   
   

  Councillor 

  Councillor 

 

 
 

Page 24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTED as a DEED by affixing 
 
The COMMON SEAL of NATIONAL PLAYING FIELDS ASSOCIATION   
 
under an authority conferred by s.260(2) Charities Act 2011 in the presence of:  
   

Trustee 

Trustee 

 

 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND RESIDENTS 

SERVICES POLICY & ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

28 June 2017 
 

 

 
20MPH SPEED LIMIT - SPEED SURVEYS RESULTS 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Committee Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: ALL 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Mahmood Siddiqi, Executive Director of Transport 
and Technical Services 
 

Report Author: Slobodan Vuckovic 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3360 
E-mail: 
slobodan.vuckovic@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The 2014 Labour Administration’s manifesto committed to “take measures to 

improve safety for pedestrians and make our neighbourhoods better places to 
live” also saying “all residential streets, not trunk roads [should] become 
20mph”. 
 

1.2. On 9 June 2015 the Mayor of London announced his target to halve the number 
of people killed or seriously injured on London’s roads by 2020. The Mayor of 
London and TfL are proposing 20mph limits on parts of their main road network 
elsewhere in London that are effectively town centre high roads, and are 
supporting boroughs who want to extend 20mph limits as part of ther Transport 
Local Implementation Plans (LIP). 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6

mailto:slobodan.vuckovic@lbhf.gov.uk


 

 

1.3. On 3 October 2014 Cabinet approved the 2015-16 Transport for London (TfL) 
funded integrated transport programme which included £200,000 to carry out a 
feasibility study and consultation on a borough wide 20mph speed limit. 

 
1.4. From 20 April – 27 April 2015 we surveyed 100 roads across the borough in 

order to measure the speed and volume of traffic.  
 

1.5 On 9 June 2015, the Council launched a nine-week consultation on the 
extension of 20mph speed limits in the borough. 

 
1.6 There were two Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC) public meetings held 

– the first on 9th June 2015, when the consultation was launched and then on 
18th November 2015, when the results of the consultation were discussed. 
Those were well attended by residents who played a full role in the discussions, 
with their comments contributing to the development of our work. 

 
1.7 During the consultation in total 5,287 responses were received and recorded, 

 45% of respondents (or 2,367) replied YES for all roads managed by LBHF 

 26% of respondents (or 1,351) replied YES but not on all roads 

 29% of respondents (or 1,493) replied NO. 
 

1.8 Thus 71% of respondents voted for some form of extension of 20mph speed 
limits in the borough (whether all roads or some roads). Those who wanted to 
retain a 30mph limit on some roads largely stated that the ‘main road’ network 
ought to remain at 30mph. 

 
1.9 In the light of this, it was recommended and approved by the Cabinet on 9 March 

2016 that that we proceed to:- 

 introduce a 20mph speed limit on all remaining side roads in the borough 

 only introduce a 20mph speed limit on sections of main roads in the three 
town centres, where accident rates are high, 

 retain the 30mph speed limit on the other main roads in the borough, 

 monitor the effect of the 20mph speed limits and collision data to inform the 
decision to implement traffic calming measures where these are 
considered necessary and subject to local consultation.  
 

1.10 Following positive consultation results and subsequent Cabinet approval the 
20mph speed limit extension was implemented on 5 September 2016, see 
Appendix 1 showing current speed limits in LBHF. 

 
1.11 The scheme was monitored during this period and comments received during the 

first 6 months were evaluated. In the light of the comments received, a first 
tranche of physical traffic calming works were identified to support the revised 
speed limit regime in the Borough. Five roads were identified and were “fast 
tracked” for implementation of additional traffic calming in June 2017.  

 
1.12 Post implementation traffic surveys were arranged to be carried out between 20-

27 April. The results of the traffic survey were compared with the traffic surveys 
results prior to the scheme implementation. These are presented in section 4. 

 

Page 27



 

 

1.13   Overall surveys results show a marginal reduction in speed over 100 locations 
that have been surveyed and compared. The speed on all 20 fastest roads in 
2015 have seen reduction after the introduction of 20mph speed limit.  

 
1.14 As well as informing us on any changes in traffic speed these survey results will 

also be used to identify further roads that may require additional treatment to 
support the speed limit.  

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the committee review and comment on traffic surveys results presented in 
section 4.  
 

2.2. That the committee review and comment on possible further measures to reduce 
speeding. 
 

3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

3.1. LBHF, as part of its Local Implementation Plan (LIP), has targets to reduce both 
the number of overall road casualties and reduce the number of people killed 
and seriously injured in collisions.  
 

3.2. Areas with slower vehicle speeds are associated with increased opportunities for 
walking and cycling. Additionally, evidence shows the increased participation in 
walking and cycling result in lower obesity, lower rates of diabetes, 
improvements to mental health and a decrease in cardiovascular disease across 
all ages. Therefore, this initiative can be seen as a potential contribution towards 
health and wellbeing. 

 
3.3. Prior to the scheme implementation in September 2016, there were already 16 

home zones and a couple of 20 mph speed limit areas covering about a third of 
the streets within LBHF. The scheme extended the reduced speed limit across 
the remaining areas, excluding borough’s classified roads (A roads) which 
remained at 30mph (except within or just outside of the town centres). 

 
3.4. Traffic surveys carried out before and after the scheme implementation 

confirmed marginal reduction in speed across the 100 roads surveyed before 
and after the scheme implementation. 

 
3.5. No traffic road accident comparison was made due to collision data still not being 

available for analysis. We would be looking at comparing a 36 month period 
immediately before implementation of the revised speed limits with a 36 month 
period after implementation in order to provide a clear view as to any changes in 
collisions involving casualties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

 

4. TRAFFIC SURVEY ANALYSIS  

4.1 Comparison Between 2015 and 2017 Data  
 
4.2 Traffic surveys were commissioned at 122 locations within the London Borough 

Hammersmith and Fulham. The 2017 survey results contained an additional 22 
sites compared to the 2015 survey which covered 100 locations. These additional 
22 sites were included upon request from residents following the scheme 
implementation, and therefore, cannot be compared to 2015 survey results.  

 
4.3 The overall average seven-day average 85th percentile speeds recorded across 

the 122 sites in 2017 was 24.57mph; 
 

 4.4 Table and chart no 1 in Appendix 2 compare 2015 20 highest 7-day average 85th 
percentile speed with the speed in 2017, for the same roads by the direction of 
travel. All fastest roads in 2015 have seen reductions in speed in 2017, during the 
7-day speed survey for the same/fastest direction of travel. 

 
4.5 The table and chart no 2 in Appendix 3 compares the 20 highest 7-day average 

85th percentile speed with the speed measured in 2015, for the same roads by 
the same/fastest direction of travel. 

 
4.6 The table and chart no3 in Appendix 4 compares 10 highest average 85th 

percentile speed in roads posted with 20mph speed limit. [It should be noted that 
Imperial Road was not surveyed in 2015].  

 
4.7 The table and chart no 4 in Appendix 5 compares 5 highest average 85th 

percentile speed on roads posted with a 30mph speed limit. The speed has been 
reduced across all sites posted with 30mph speed limit. 

 
4.8 Table 5 in Appendix 6 shows all roads surveyed before and after the scheme 

implementation. Although the speed has been reduced on a number of roads, 
some roads have seen an increase in speed.   

 
4.9 Table 6 and 7 in Appendix 7 show 10 roads with highest increase and highest 

reduction in 7-day average 85th percentile speed, between 2015 and 2017 (based 
on a two-way average count). 

 
4.10 Although the number of locations surveyed have seen reduction in speed, when 

comparing with 2015, a number of location has also seen an increase in speed, 
see Appendices 6 & 7 

 
4.10 The mean speed across all 20mph posted speed limit roads was 19.30 and the 

mean speed across all 30mph posted speed limit roads was 21.94 
 
4.11  The results of the 2017 data show that the average 85th percentile speeds 

across the 100 comparable roads surveyed in 2015 and 2017 have been 
marginally reduced from 24.83mph to 24.52mph.   

 
 

Page 29



 

 

5 WHAT’S NEXT? 
 
5.1 Subject to retention of the revised speed limit we intend to develop a borough 

wide engineering strategy for supporting the new speed limit regime across the 
Borough. This will mean considering whether additional measures are needed to 
help support the lower speed limit in roads where the problems of non-
compliance and/or high levels of collisions persist.  

 
5.2 Investigation on any additional works in support to 20mph speed limit will be data 

led, whereby residents living on roads with high level of speed non-compliance 
will be consulted on traffic calming solutions that would lead to desired speed 
reduction. 

 
5.3 As part of the strategy for supporting the new speed limit and subject to scheme 

being retained, further work towards education and promoting the reduced speed 
limit will be conducted.   

 
 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES  
 
 
Appendix 1 -  map of the current speed limits in the Borough. 
 
Appendix 2 - 2015 20 highest average 85th percentile speed compared with 2017 
survey results, by the same/fastest direction of travel 
 
Appendix 3 - 2017 20 highest average 85th percentile speed compared with 2015 
survey results, by the same/fastest direction of travel 
 
Appendix 4 - 10 highest average 85th percentile speed recorded on roads posted 
with 20mph speed limit. 
 
Appendix 5 -  all 30mph road’s 7-day average 85th percentile speeds  
 
Appendix 6 - list of 100 roads surveyed in 2015 and 2017, showing the changes in 
average 85th percentile speed recorded 
 
Appendix 7 - 10 roads with highest increase and highest reduction in 7-day average 
85th percentile speed, between 2015 and 2017 (based on two-way average). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

 

Appendix 1 

 
 

Page 31



 

 

 
Appendix 2 

 

  Highest Average 7 day 85
th

 Percentile Speed 

 Road Name  
2015 Direction 2017 

Difference in mph 

1. Margravine Road 34.89 SB 24.54 -10.35 

2. Hammersmith Road 32.90 WB 30.67 -2.23 

3. South Africa Road 32.86 EB 30.31 -2.55 

4. Goldhawk Road * 32.20 WB 31.4 -0.80 

5. Wandsworth Bridge * 31.99 NB 31.44 -0.55 

6. Stamford Brook Road  31.91 EB 28.81 -3.10 

7. Uxbridge Road * 31.87 EB 30.74 -1.13 

8. Paddenswick Road 31.57 NB 28.29 -3.28 

9. Old Oak Road 31.40 SB 28.11 -3.29 

10. Fulham Palace Road * 30.99 NB 28.93 -2.06 

11. Du Cane Road 30.71 EB 29.03 -1.68 

12. Fulham Road * 30.64 WB 30.51 -0.13 

13. Lillie Road 30.39 WB 29.14 -1.25 

14. Harwood Road 30.17 NB 28.93 -1.24 

15. Old Oak Common Lane 30.16 SB 29.34 -0.82 

16. North End Road 29.71 NB 28.54 -1.17 

17. Normand Road 29.36 SB 22.67 -6.69 

18. Wandsworth Bridge Road * 29.13 NB 28.6 -0.53 

19. Glenthorne Road (one-way) 28.80 EB 27.11 -1.69 

20. Askew Road  28.64 SB 26.13 -2.51 

Table 1 
*roads with 30mph speed limit  

 

 
Chart 1 - 2015’s 20 Highest 7 day average 85

th
 percentile speed compared with the speed measured 

in 2017. All 20 locations have seen reduction in speed. 
 

 
 

Page 32



 

 

 
Appendix 3 

 

Top 20 2017 7day avg. 85th percentile speeds 
Road Direction 2015 2017 

1. Imperial Road NB 0.00 32.60 

2. Wandsworth Bridge NB 31.99 31.44 

3. Goldhawk Road WB 32.20 31.40 

4. Uxbridge Road (a) WB 31.87 30.74 

5. Hammersmith Road WB 32.90 30.67 

6. Fulham Road (b) WB 30.64 30.51 

7. Ellerslie Road EB 23.50 30.46 

8. South Africa Road NB 32.86 30.31 

9. Old Oak Common Lane NB 30.16 29.91 

10. Fulham Palace Road (b) NB 30.99 29.61 

11. Lillie Road WB 30.39 29.14 

12. Du Cane Road EB 30.71 29.03 

13. Fulham Palace Road (a) NB 25.50 28.93 

14. Harwood Road NB 30.17 28.93 

15. Stamford Brook Road NB 31.91 28.81 

16. Wandsworth Bridge Road NB 29.13 28.60 

17. North End Road SB 29.71 28.54 

18. Old Oak Road NB 31.40 28.31 

19. Paddenswick Road NB 31.57 28.29 

20. Sherbroke Road WB 28.40 28.07 

Table 2 

 
 

 
Chart 2 - 2017’s top 20 7-day average 85

th
 percentile speed in comparison with the speed measured 

in 2015. Imperial Road was not surveyed in 2015. 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

 

 
Appendix 4 
 

Top 10 20mph roads  

Road Name 
Direction of 

Travel 
2015 2017 

1. Imperial Road NB 0.00 32.60 

2. Hammersmith Road WB 32.90 30.67 

3. Ellerslie Road EB 23.50 30.46 

4. South Africa Road NB 32.86 30.31 

5. Old Oak Common Lane NB 30.16 29.91 

6. Lillie Road WB 30.39 29.14 

7. Du Cane Road EB 30.71 29.03 

8. Harwood Road NB 30.17 28.93 

9. Stamford Brook Road NB 31.91 28.81 

10. North End Road (a) SB 29.71 28.54 

Table 3 
 
 

 
Chart 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

 

 
 
 
Appendix 5 
 

Road Name

Direction of 

Travel
2017 2015

1. Wandsworth Bridge NB 31.44 31.99
2. Goldhawk Road WB 31.4 32.2
3. Uxbridge Road (a) WB 30.74 31.87
4. Fulham Road (b) WB 30.51 30.64
5. Fulham Palace Road (b) NB 29.61 30.99
6. Fulham Palace Road (a) NB 28.93 29.8
7. Fulham Road (a) SB 26.41 26.2
8. Kings Road SB 25.91 25.1
9. Uxbridge Road (b) EB 25.17 26.4
10. New Kings Road SB 24.8 27.5

All 30mph road's 7 day average 85th percentile speeds

 
Table 4 
 
 
 

 
Chart 4 
 

(a) or (b) refer to different locations along the route that have been surveyed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

 

Appendix 6 
 

       

Road

2015 

avg. 

85th

2017 

avg. 

85th

Change Road

2015 

avg. 

85th

2017 

avg. 

85th

Change

Askew Road 28.5 26.51 -1.99 Margravine Gardens (one-way)23.85 22.34 -1.515

Australia Road 15 17.58 2.58 Margravine Road 23.7 23.01 -0.69

Avonmore Road 14.65 24.73 10.08 Macfarlane Road 29.3 25.54 -3.76

Banim Street 27.1 25.33 -1.77 Munster Road (a) 27.5 25.06 -2.44

Barns Court Road 27.1 25.33 -1.77 Munster Road (b) 23.6 23.41 -0.19

Bloemfontein Road 19 23.14 4.14 Nella Road 23.6 21.83 -1.77

Blythe Road 26.65 24.965 -1.685 New Kings Road 23 25.22 2.22

Bolinbroke Road 20.15 20.82 0.67 Normand Road 26.85 24.62 -2.23

Brackenburry Road 22.45 21.235 -1.215 North End Road (a) 26.25 22.54 -3.715

Brook Green (one-way) 19.45 17.01 -2.44 North End Road (b) 29.45 28.25 -1.2

Broomhouse Lane 19.45 21.24 1.79 Novello Road 26.5 22.25 -4.255

Broughton Road 27.05 26.56 -0.49 Old Oak Common Lane 19 18.88 -0.12

Bryoni Road 24.05 25.66 1.61 Old Oak Road 29.75 29.63 -0.125

Butterwick Road (one-way)22.05 22.25 0.2 Paddenswick Road 31.3 28.21 -3.09

Cambridge Grove (one-way)28.2 28.06 -0.14 Pearscroft Road 31.3 17.53 -13.77

Cathnor Road 15.4 20.33 4.93 Pennard Road (one-way)23.5 25.43 1.93

Caxton Road 24.15 23.94 -0.21 Percy Road 17.7 22.16 4.46

Clancarte Road 21.8 21.255 -0.545 Quarenndon Street 27.15 22.95 -4.2

Cobbold Road 24.95 21.975 -2.975 Queen Carloine Street 26.6 27.25 0.65

Commonwealth Avenue 23.3 23.025 -0.275 Queen Carloine Street (one-way)21.3 19.74 -1.565

Conningham Road 25.5 24.81 -0.69 Ranoch Road 20.5 27.16 6.66

Dalling Road (one-way) 22.35 22.645 0.295 Ravenscourt Gardens 19.35 20.73 1.38

Dowes Road 24.2 22.01 -2.19 Ravenscourt Park 23.6 24.42 0.815

Du Cane Road 27.2 27.33 0.13 Richmond Way 26.7 28.17 1.465

Ellerbie Street 29.95 26.495 -3.455 Rivercourt Road (one-way)16.65 18.7 2.045

Ellerslie Road 23.5 23.985 0.485 Rockley Road (one-way)22.8 25.4 2.6

Fabian Road 26.4 28.575 2.175 Rylston Road 11.85 26.34 14.49

Fitzneal Street 25.15 22.605 -2.545 Sedlescombe Road 21.3 24.07 2.765

Flanchford Road 24.8 24.16 -0.64 Settrington Road 23.7 23.8 0.095

Fulham Palace Road (a) 25.5 22.73 -2.77 Shepherds Bush Road 23.5 23.37 -0.135

Fulham Palace Road (b) 28.3 29.27 0.97 Sherbroke Road 28.4 26.46 -1.9435

Fulham Road (a) 30.85 27.7 -3.15 Shottendane Road 27.05 28.02 0.965

Fulham Road (b) 25.65 29.875 4.225 Sinclair Road 25.5 21.4 -4.1

Glenthorne Road (one-way)29.95 26.09 -3.86 South Africa Road 24.4 23.4 -1.005

Gliddon Road 28.9 27.11 -1.79 Stamford Brook Road 31.2 22.1 -9.1

Goldhawk Road 23.15 23.805 0.655 Stokenchurch Road 31.55 25.8 -5.755

Gowan Avenue 32.1 31.28 -0.82 Sulgrave Road 21.7 22.9 1.2

Greyhound Road 28.3 27.745 -0.555 Tournay Road 23.05 25.51 2.46

Hadian Park Road 24.6 24.435 -0.165 Townmead Road 26.65 26.57 -0.08

Hammersmith Grove 24.3 22.765 -1.535 Uxbridge Road (a) 25.95 25.08 -0.87

Hammersmith Road 19.55 21.39 1.84 Uxbridge Road (b) 31.55 30.35 -1.2

Hartswood Road 32.1 30.005 -2.095 Verker Road 26.4 25.06 -1.345

Harwood Road 23.9 24.84 0.94 Walham Grove 21.7 21.52 -0.185

Hugon Road (one-way) 29.55 22.655 -6.895 Wandsworth Bridge 24.2 26.33 2.13

King Street (one-way) 25.1 31.595 6.495 Wandsworth Bridge Road31.2 31.19 -0.01

Kings Road 28.2 25.47 -2.73 Wendell Road 29 28.15 -0.855

Letchford Gardens 25.1 22.19 -2.91 Woodlawn Road 24.35 21.71 -2.645

Lillie Road 21.25 23.43 2.18 Wormholt Road 20.8 22.8 2

Lime Grove (one-way) 30.1 29.07 -1.03 Wulfstan Road 24.7 24.36 -0.34

Linver Road 22.45 23.93 1.48 Avg change in 7 day avg 85th 24.83 24.52 -0.31

Loftus Road 23.75 24.345 0.595

85th Percentile Speed Change 85th Percentile Speed Change

 
          Table 5 

Page 36



 

 

Appendix 7 
 
Roads with where the highest increase and best reduction were recorded over the 
traffic surveys in 2015 and 2017. 
 
  
 

        
 
 
 

       

Road 2015 avg. 85th 2017 avg. 85th Change

Paddenswick Road 31.30 20.15 -11.15

Stokenchurch Road 31.55 21.55 -10.00

Richmond Way 26.70 18.70 -8.01

Cambridge Grove (one-way) 28.20 20.33 -7.87

Novello Road 26.50 18.88 -7.62

Wendell Road 29.00 21.71 -7.30

Hartswood Road 32.10 24.84 -7.26

Stamford Brook Road 31.20 24.25 -6.95

Queen Carloine Street 26.60 19.74 -6.87

Uxbridge Road (a) 31.55 25.06 -6.50

10 roads with the highest change in average 85th percentile speeds

 

Road
2015 avg. 85th 2017 avg. 85th Change

Old Oak Common Lane 19.00 29.63 10.63

Hammersmith Road 19.55 30.01 10.46

Avonmore Road (one-way) 14.65 24.73 10.08

Rivercourt Road (one-way) 16.65 25.40 8.75

Cathnor Road 15.40 23.94 8.54

Goldhawk Road 23.15 31.28 8.13

Rylston Road 11.85 19.80 7.95

Lillie Road 21.25 29.07 7.82

Broomhouse Lane 19.45 26.56 7.11

Wandsworth Bridge 24.20 31.19 6.99

10 roads with the highest change in average 85th percentile speeds

Page 37



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 

RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
 28 June 2017 

 

 

Progress Tackling Air Pollution  
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Policy & Accountability Committee Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation: 
Highways, Transport, Planning, Housing, Parks 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Nicholas Austin, Director for Environmental Health 
 

Report Author: Elizabeth Fonseca, 
Environmental Quality Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3454 
E-mail: elizabeth.fonseca@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises the progress being made by the Council in 

implementing the recommendations made by the resident led Air Quality 
Commission as well as other projects and actions to tackle air pollution.  The 
report also discusses air quality data for the borough and what actions the 
Council plans to take in the future. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the Committee notes the progress the Council is making implementing 
our Air Quality Action Plan 

2.2. That the Committee notes the requirements and schedule for implementing an 
updated Action Plan 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7

mailto:elizabeth.fonseca@lbhf.gov.uk


2.3. That the Committee recommends any actions the Council should include in 
our revised Action Plan 

2.4. That the Committee notes the status of the current Mayor’s Air Quality Fund 
projects 

 
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. Poor air quality has a significant negative impact on human health and a 
recent report by King’s College London (Understanding the Health Impacts of 
Air Pollution in London, KCL, July 2015) has estimated that approximately 203 
early deaths are attributable to NO2 and fine particulate matter (PM2.5). 
 

3.2. Public Health England has identified the fraction of all-cause adult mortality 
attributable to PM2.5 as one of its key indicators within the Public Health 
Outcomes Framework (PHOF 3.01) which is currently 6.1% based on 2015 
values (down from 7.9% based on 2010 PM2.5 modelled data in the 
borough).  
 

3.3. A recent UK Supreme Court judgement could lead to possible national fines 
for breaches of the nitrogen dioxide limits which have been occurring since 
2010.  The former Mayor of London estimated that the fines could potentially 
be £300 million per annum in London alone;  these fines could be passed 
onto Local Authorities and both Defra and the GLA have written to the Council 
stating this and reminding us of our duties to address poor air quality in our 
area. 
 

3.4. The new London Local Air Quality Management Framework requires the 
Council to update our current Air Quality Action Plan. 
 

3.5. The Hammersmith and Fulham resident led Air Quality Commission has made 
recommendations to the Council to improve air quality which will need to be 
reflected in an updated Action Plan. 
 

3.6. The Administration’s manifesto aims and objectives are for the Council to 
drive forward improvements in air quality within the Borough. 
 
 

4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  
 

Air Quality Commission 
4.1. The Council is continuing to make progress with the recommendations made 

by the resident led Air Quality Commission.  A Progress Report on these 
recommendations are provided in Appendix A. 
 

4.2. The Commission’s recommendations will be imbedded in the Council’s 
updated Air Quality Action Plan. 
 
 

Page 39



Air Quality Action Plan Progress 
4.3. The Council has been progressing our Air Quality Action Plan.  The 2016 

report on the Council’s progress is included in Appendix B.  The Council’s 
2017 report is not yet finalised as we are awaiting input, as are a number of 
Local Authorities, from an external consultant.   
 

4.4. The measures described in the Council’s status report are in the following 
broad categories: 

 

 Reducing emissions at source: encouraging the uptake and provision of 
alternative fuel; encouraging active travel like cycling and walking; 
reducing pollution from construction sites; reducing emissions (mainly from 
gas boilers) from domestic and commercial properties; controlling 
emissions from industrial premises. 
 

 Reducing the need to travel: improving town centres, facilities, and 
employment areas; reducing the air quality impact of new development 

 

 Encouraging a switch to less polluting forms of transport: promoting, along 
with TFL, bus services and other forms of public transport, walking and 
cycling – including the reduction of car use for school and work journeys; 
controlling the provision of off-street parking; encouraging sustainable 
freight transport; encouraging car sharing;  

 

 Other measures to reduce traffic emissions: reducing the amount of traffic 
in residential areas and town centres; promoting the use of trees to 
improve local air quality; reducing A4 and A40 traffic 

 

 Raise awareness of links between air quality and health: providing people 
with information on how to make informed choices about travel behaviour; 
continuing to monitor air quality and make that information available.  This 
includes the promotion of AirTEXT – a subscription service which provides 
air quality forecasts and alerts via app, text, e-mail or telephone message.  
The Council also promotes the use of Walkit, a website where low 
pollution routes for walking or cycling can be mapped, much like TfL’s 
Travel Planner. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



Air Quality Monitoring 
4.5. The Council maintains an air quality monitoring station in Shepherd’s Bush 

(see Figure 1) which continually monitors nitrogen dioxide and particulate 
matter (PM10) as well as a network of 35 nitrogen dioxide diffusion tubes 
across the borough; this was increased in February of this year from just 15 
tubes to provide better coverage of the borough and to target the area around 
schools.  The Council are currently considering increasing the number of 
continuous monitors across the borough and monitoring for additional 
pollutants including PM2.5 and Ozone. 

 
Figure 1 Continuous Air Quality Monitoring Station 

4.6. The locations of these nitrogen dioxide diffusion tubes are provided in Figure 
2 below: 

 
Figure 2 - Diffusion Tube Locations 

 

Page 41



4.7. The London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory provides the Council with a 
breakdown of air pollution sources in the borough as well as maps showing 
the levels of air pollution experienced across the borough. 
 

 

 
Figure 3 - Particulate Matter in Hammersmith and Fulham 

Notes: 
D&C = Domestic and Commercial 
C&D = Construction and Demolition 
 
• Industry: is the total emission from Part A and Part B industrial processes, combined.  

• Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM): is the total emissions from construction and industrial off 
road machines, combined.  

• Other: is the total emission from a number of small sources including: agriculture, outdoor fires, 
garden emissions, forests, waste and waste transfer sites, combined.  
 

Page 42



 

4.8. The most recent inventory was undertaken in 2013.  Figures 3 and 4 provide 
a breakdown of pollution by source for particulate matter (PM10) and nitrogen 
dioxide (NO2) including data from the LAEIs for 2008, 2010 and 2013 as well 
as current predictions for 2020, 2025 and 2030. 

 

 
Figure 4 - Nitrogen oxide in Hammersmith and Fulham 

 Notes: 
D&C = Domestic and Commercial 
 
• Industry: is the total emission from Part A and Part B industrial processes, combined.  

• Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM): is the total emissions from construction and industrial off 
road machines, combined.  

• Other: is the total emission from a number of small sources including: agriculture, outdoor fires, 
garden emissions, forests, waste and waste transfer sites, combined.  

 

Page 43



4.9. Maps showing the annual mean concentrations or NO2 and PM2 and shown 
in figures 5 and 6 respectively. 
 

 
Figure 5 - Nitrogen Dioxide 

 
Figure 6 - Particulate Matter (PM10) 

Page 44



Mayor’s Air Quality Fund Project Progress 
4.10. As part of the 2016 annual report submitted by the Council, we must 

demonstrate that we are working towards meeting the criteria to have Cleaner 
Air Borough (CAB) status, a prerequitie to apply for the London Mayor’s Air 
Quality funding (MAQF).  The Council have achieved this status and have 
successfully bid for MAQF funding on a number of projects to tack poor air 
quality.  These include: 
 

 Scrubs Lane Dust Suppressant trial: This project trials the use of dust 
suppressants in the area of various industrial sites in the north of the 
borough in the area of Scrubs Lane, particularly the waste transfer 
station.  This project is looking at the optimum location for using dust 
suppressants in the area of such works:  at the works themselves; on 
internal industrial roadways; or on the road outside of the properties and 
walkways used by residents.  Active monitoring of particulate matter is a 
part of this project.  This project is being run in cooperation with the 
Environment Agency and King’s College London. 
 

 Clean Air Better Business programme:  this project is coordinated by the 
Cross Rivers Partnership and is also being run across multiple 
boroughs.  The focus of this project is to mitigate pollution from taxi and 
freight industries and to work with local businesses to reduce their 
emissions via awareness raising initiatives, improving work travel plans, 
increasing the uptake of less polluting travel modes and embedding 
sustainable procurement. 

 

 Low Emission Logistics: this freight consolidation project is extended 
across multiple boroughs and aims to minimise the transportation needed 
to supply councils with external goods and services.  This rolls out a 
successful pilot project in Camden where 4,258 deliveries were cut 
annually.  This project also works with local businesses to achieve similar 
results. 

 

 Idling engine awareness:  this project is across multiple boroughs and 
aims to raise the public’s awareness about the pollution attributable to 
idling engines, how this impacts on health, and what they can do to make 
a positive difference.  Air Quality Champions, comprised of volunteers 
from the community, along with officers will go out select action days to 
speak directly with drivers about this issue and hand out informational 
material.  These action days complement the Mayor’s Breathe Better 
Together Days for maximum publicity.  Six action days were progressed 
across the borough last year with a further four planned this year as part of 
the project’s second phase.  This second phase will include liaising with 
and getting cooperation from local businesses to take action on idling 
engines. 

 

 London Low Emission Construction Partnership:  this project is being run 
across multiple boroughs in partnership with King’s College London, the 
council and the construction sector.  In LBHF, the project is being 
progressed at the Earls Court Development site with the contractor, 

Page 45



Keltbray.  The project aims to help the construction industry better 
understand their impact on local air quality and encourages them to 
undertake the best possible pollution abatement measures particularly 
targeting non-road mobile machinery which is a major source of pollution 
on demolition and construction sites. 

 

 Greening of Talgarth Road: a green ‘screen’ of tall grass has been planted 
along the stretch of the Talgarth Road between Shortlands and Butterwick 
along the pavement.  The aim of this project is to reduce the exposure of 
pedestrians and cyclists using this stretch of road.  Active air quality 
monitoring has been on-going to determine how well this screen is 
working. 

 
 
Updating the Council’s Air Quality Action Plan 

4.11. The borough is an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) for nitrogen dioxide 
and particulate matter.  As required by the Environment Act, the Council must 
have and Action Plan to improve air quality in an AQMA.  The current Air 
Quality Action Plan has been in place to address these pollutants since 2003.   
 

4.12. The Council report our progress implementing that plan annually to Defra and 
the GLA for their approval; our reports have been accepted every year since 
the Action Plan was put into place.   
 

4.13. Up through 2015, our action planning and reporting was governed by Defra’s 
Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) framework, but, from 2016, the 
Council must adhere to a London specific framework published by the Mayor 
of London and known as the London LAQM (LLAQM).  
 

4.14. The LLAQM also requires annual reporting in the form of an Annual Status 
Report (ASR) on the progress the Council is making implementing the Action 
Plan as well as monitoring air pollution across the borough.  The Council 
submitted an ASR in 2016 to Defra and the GLA which was accepted; it is 
now published on our website and is provided in Appendix B. 
 

4.15. The LLAQM includes an Air Quality Action Plan template which specifies 
actions which all London local authorities are required to report on.  Although 
there are still many overlaps between the Council’s 2003 Action Plan and 
those on the LLAQM template, an update to the Council’s Action Plan will be 
necessary to incorporate all relevant actions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



5. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  
 

5.1. The Council will update the current Air Quality Action Plan.  The revised plan 
will take account of the Air Quality Commission’s Recommendations and the 
LLAQM template. 
 

5.2. The revised action plan will be finalised in July and put out to public 
consultation for three months.  It will then be finalised taking account of the 
consultation responses and approved by full Cabinet. 
 

5.3. The revision of the Action Plan notwithstanding, the Council will continue to 
implement the Commission’s recommendations as well as the Actions in the 
current Action Plan and the MAQF projects. 
 

5.4. Recommendations from this Committee on any actions that should be 
considered or on the manner in which the updated report is to be consulted 
upon will also be taken forward. 

 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A:  Air Quality Commission Recommendations: Progress Report 
Appendix B: London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Annual Status Report 
 

Page 47



Air Quality Commission Recommendations:  

Progress Report 

 

 

For action by Government and national bodies 

 

There were a total of nine recommendations aimed at the Government and national 

bodies, none of which have yet been acted upon. 

 

MPs from four influential committees are coming together to launch a joint inquiry 

into the scale and impact of the UK’s air pollution crisis. The Environmental Audit 

Committee; Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Committee; Health Committee and 

Transport Committee will hold four sessions to consider mounting scientific evidence 

on the health and environmental effects of toxic air.  The AQC report will be 

submitted to the inquiry. 

 

 The Government to launch a diesel scrappage scheme giving grants to cut 

the cost of a low emission vehicle for owners scrapping their diesel car or van. 

 The Government to place a surcharge on the sale of diesel fuel to affect 

consumer choice. 

 The sale of new, and importation of all, diesel vehicles to the UK to be 

banned. 

 The Government to revise the MOT test to include the measurement limits of 

nitrous oxide and PM10 emissions. 

 Tyre, brake and clutch manufacturers to use materials that wear less, thus 

reducing particulate matter. 

 Nano coatings for roads and tyres to be considered. 

 The Government and the GLA to make plans for hydrogen-fuelled cars. 

 Car manufacturers to meet pollution standards. 

 ‘No drive days’ in major cities during episodes of very high pollution. 

 

 

  

Page 48



For action by the GLA and regional bodies 

 

There were a total of 11 recommendations aimed at the Mayor and the GLA/TfL and 

five of these have been acted upon. 

 

Updates: 

 

The Leader of the Council wrote to the Mayor of London on 8 December 2016 

promoting the AQC recommendations aimed at him and the GLA and its agencies.  

The Mayor replied on 9 January 2017 setting out his response to the AQC’s report, 

including the take up of many of the Commissions recommendations. 

 

Air pollution has been identified by the London Association and Directors of Public 

Health as a priority issue and on the 3rd March they hosted a conference with 

Directors of Environmental Health to explore actions that they can take to help tackle 

the capital’s poor air quality. 

 

 The Mayor of London to review the London Plan and prioritise air quality 

in a new London Plan. 

The Mayor states, in his response to Cllr Cowan’s letter, that he is developing a new 

London Plan with additional air quality requirements. 

 

 The use of electric buses to be expanded across the borough until all 

petrol and diesel-fuelled buses have been removed. 

The Mayor of London has now designated King Street/Glenthorne 

Road/Hammersmith Road and Uxbridge Road as “Low Emission Bus Corridors”.  

The Mayor also stated, in his letter to Cllr Cowan, that he is committing to purchasing 

only hybrid or zero emission buses from 2018. 

 

 The Mayor of London to add Hammersmith and Fulham to the eight 

boroughs with designated Low Emission Neighbourhoods. 

The Mayor states, in his response to Cllr Cowan’s letter, that he has no additional 

funding allocated for Low Emission Neighbourhoods at the present time but that he 

would advise us if any additional funding becomes available.  The Mayor also offers 

advice and support from his officers if H&F should wish to delvier its own Low 

Emission Neighbourhood using alternative funding sources. 

 

 An education campaign, to be initiated by the GLA and the Council, to 

reduce ‘idling’.  Enforcement measures to be considered. 

The Mayor states, in his response to Cllr Cowan’s letter, that he is funding a pan-

London idling campaign through the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund. 

Page 49



The Council has joined the Clean Air Champions scheme and trained up champions 

to encourage drivers who are idling to switch off their engines: 

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/articles/news/2017/03/clean-air-champions-succeed-

parsons-green-switch-it-message 

 

 The Mayor of London to review London’s Climate Change and Energy 

Strategy to reconcile the potential conflict between decentralised energy 

and air pollution, and cease promoting combined heat and power 

installations in its energy hierarchy above air quality neutral 

technologies. 

The Mayor states, in his response to Cllr Cowan’s letter, that he is undertaking a 

review of all the current Ernvironment strategies and consolidating them into a single 

London Environment Strategy, in order to address conflicts such as this and to 

maximise opportunities for realising co-benefits. 

 

Other recommendations: 

 A new London Plan to promote the need for more permeable surfaces, more 

tree planting and other green barriers between highways and pedestrian 

areas. 

 Zero carbon policies, balanced with air quality neutral policies, to be 

incorporated in planning guidance for all new buildings. 

 A scheme of car-free days to be introduced across inner London by the Mayor 

and consideration given to bans on vehicle use during days of very high air 

pollution. 

 Traffic lights to be co-ordinated to effect smoother traffic flows. 

 The GLA to continue to commission regular studies to measure and monitor 

tree, hedge and grass cover across London boroughs. 

 The Mayor of London’s boiler scrappage scheme to have an air pollution 

focus. 

 

 

  

Page 50

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/articles/news/2017/03/clean-air-champions-succeed-parsons-green-switch-it-message
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/articles/news/2017/03/clean-air-champions-succeed-parsons-green-switch-it-message


For action by the Council 

 

There were a total of 25 recommendations aimed at the Council and 20 of these 

have been acted upon or are under consideration. 

 

Updates: 

 

 The Council to develop an Urban Ecology Plan to drive greening and 

arboricultural policy and practice across the borough. 

Officers are working with a resident-led Biodiversity Commission to shape the 

content of the Ecology Plan.  The Plan is focusing on four key areas: building a 

robust ecological network; putting people at the heart of biodiversity; reducing 

environmental pressures by creating new habitats, green corridors and stepping 

stones, and; managing existing habitats and improving our knowledge and 

understanding of the current position.  

 

 All major developments, particularly those which will last for many 
years, to be closely monitored to ensure that all steps are being taken to 
mitigate the impact on air quality by the construction, drilling and 
movement of spoil. 

The Council require major developments to submit Construction and Demolition 

Management plans which include a Dust Management Plan and that these plans 

comply with the Mayor of London’s Supplementary Planning Document: the Control 

of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition.  This includes regulating 

the use of Non-Road Mobile Machinery and requiring high level dust mitigation 

measures in line with prevailing guidance and emerging technologies. 

 

 Awareness-raising initiatives like airTEXT and Walkit.com to continue to 
be supported by the Council 

The Council continues to publicise and encourage the uptake and use of airTEXT 

and Walkit on our website as well as at public events.  The Council (through Public 

Health) continue to fund airTEXT. 

 

 Washing down of streets and pavements to be introduced in areas of 
high particulate matter air pollution 

The Council has been conducting a study on how well a deep clean impacts on 

improving air pollution to inform how this may be taken forward. 

 

 The Council to seek to establish a freight consolidation scheme in West 

London. 

Through our sub-regional partner Westtrans have published a freight strategy for 

west London as linked below.  

Page 51



http://www.westtrans.org/WLA/wt2.nsf/Files/WTA-

180/$file/WestTrans%20proof%2026.07.16.pdf  

Initiated a freight study in Hammersmith town centre to identify local and last mile 

consolidation opportunities 

 

 The diesel parking permit charge for residents to be increased to 

encourage the change to alternative modes of transport. 

We are maintaining our current parking charges for residents and green permits and 

adding a free permit for fully electriv vehicles. We are reviewing the mayors ULEZ 

consultation and will develop a permit strategy based on its results. 

 

 The Council to increase tree, hedge and grass planting on Council-

owned land and highways. 

The TfL funded integrated transport programme for 2017/18 has several green 

infrastructure projects following on from the recent successful delivery of award 

winning infrastructure. 

 

 The Council to stagger tree pruning to one in every three trees every 

three years. 

This recommendation has most relevance to the cyclical crown reduction pruning & 

pollarding of the larger growing street trees. It is not considered to be applicable to 

the smaller ornamental tree species which generally only require modest pruning. 

Officers should undertake a feasibility study to look at the impact on existing 

maintenance procedures, budgets and service delivery. As part of this study a trial 

over 3-5 year in a few streets would be useful and provide an opportunity to consider 

all the implications and feedback from residents.  Resident engagement and 

acceptance will be a key factor if these changes are to be understood and 

successfully introduced. 

 

 The Council, along with its strategic partners such as Transport for 

London, to develop plans to increase pedestrianisation, cycling and 

greening in its town centres.  

The Hammersmith residents group are working on a supplementary planning 

document for the town centre that is exploring the removal of one of the arms of 

Hammersmith Gyratory, alongside planning for Hammersmith Flyunder 

 

 More safer cycle routes to be developed by the Council and Transport 

for London. 

Many of the cycle projects set out in the 2015 cycle strategy are now coming on-line. 

The Hammersmith Gyratory better junction received over 70% support and has been 

Page 52

http://www.westtrans.org/WLA/wt2.nsf/Files/WTA-180/$file/WestTrans%20proof%2026.07.16.pdf
http://www.westtrans.org/WLA/wt2.nsf/Files/WTA-180/$file/WestTrans%20proof%2026.07.16.pdf


handed over to the council to deliver. Cycle superhighway 9 has been reviewed by 

the new Mayor for London and the council are working with TfL on a consultation for 

later in 2017. The east Acton quietway project received over 80% support and will be 

built later this year. 

 

 The Council to plan for, and facilitate the development of, more 

electrical charging points across the borough. 

By the end of 2017 150 publicly available electric charging points will be available on 

street, one of the most in London. Plans are also been developed for rapid charging 

stations in the borough and using our on-street lamp columns for charging. 

 

 The Council to increase its participation in public education and 

awareness programmes on air pollution. 

The Public Health Team have been involved in funding the pan-London airText 

service, embedding air quality messages into patient pathways and supporting 

LBHF’s Resident Panel. 

The Council has joined the Clean Air Champions scheme and trained up champions 

to encourage drivers who are idling to switch off their engines: 

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/articles/news/2017/03/clean-air-champions-succeed-

parsons-green-switch-it-message 

 

 The Council to work towards a target of converting all its fleets to low-

emission vehicles and introduce procurement requirements to ensure 

that contractors comply with low-emission targets. 

Council fleet: All new council vehicles are required to comply with low emission 

targets. 

New contracts: the Council has not previously stated in its standard contract terms 

and conditions restrictions on the emissions from contractors’ vehicles.  If Members 

are to agree to this new requirement then it will need to be reflected in all new 

procurement exercises and be measured as part of the contract monitoring 

arrangement.  This can be done relatively quickly by instructing Director of Law to 

make changes to all standard Tic’s (whether RBKC and WCC would want changes 

would be up to them – we do share common contract documents). 

Existing contracts: if the Council wants to implement it across all existing providers 

(Amy, Serco, F M Conway, Mitie &c) then it would have to renegotiate terms for the 

adaption of their existing vehicle fleet and impose new requirements for replacement 

vehicles.  This will increase the price of the contracts.  

 

Page 53

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/articles/news/2017/03/clean-air-champions-succeed-parsons-green-switch-it-message
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/articles/news/2017/03/clean-air-champions-succeed-parsons-green-switch-it-message


 The Local Plan to specify the need to consider the impact of all new 

developments on air quality. 

Minor changes have been proposed to the Local Plan to consider the impact of all 

developments – see minor changes MC188 and 189 on the minor changes schedule 

which has been submitted to the Secretary of State. 

 

 Arboricultural and greening policies to be promoted in the Local Plan 

and Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs). 

Arboricultural and greening policies aer promoted in the proposed Local Plan. They 

will also be promoted in the Planning Guidance SPD when it is reviewed and 

consulted upon later in the year. 

 

 The need to plan for ‘walkability’ to be recognised in SPDs to the Local 

Plan. 

Cycling and walking are promoted as sustainable ways to travel in the Local Plan 

and they will also be promoted in relevant sections of any new SPDs to the Local 

Plan, when they are drafted. 

 

 Expand the number of air quality monitoring stations across the 

borough. 

As of February 2017, the Council has extended its nitrogen dioxide tube network by 

20 and now has 35 locations.  Officers are also preparing a paper for the Cabinet 

Member for Environment setting out the costs associated with expanding the 

Council’s automatic continuous monitoring network.  

 

 The WELL Building Standard to be adhered to in the planning of all new 

developments. 

The WELL building standard does not form part of current planning policy in the 

borough. Planning policy teams will investigate its suitability for inclusion in the local 

plan or through the development of a specific SPD where appropriate (once the local 

plan process has completed). 

 

 The Council to encourage the use of prefabrication in construction 

works to reduce particulate matter. 

Where the Council is in control of sites (i.e in its ownership) it will consider off site 

construction as part of the procurement process, subject to viability and affordability. 

The Council has limited powers over the form of construction private developers use, 

however it will support them through the planning process – most major sites 

currently involve an element of off-site construction.  

 

Page 54

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/kd4_schedule_of_minor_and_technical_changes_to_the_proposed_submission_local_plan_.pdf


 Boilers to be replaced by ultra-low NOx boilers. 

This will be investigated as part of the planned capital programme for the 

replacement of domestic boilers and any CHP. This will happen as existing boilers 

come to the end of their useful life (usually c.10 years for domestic boilers, longer for 

communal systems). 

 

Other recommendations: 

 Public air pollution alerts and forecasts to be made more widely available. 

 The Council to exercise its enforcement powers to ensure that developers 

fulfil commitments in delivering tree planting plans; also to seek ways of 

maintaining mature tree cover when planning for new developments. 

 The Council to encourage residents and organisations to consider Blue Green 

schemes in homes and offices. 

 The Council to increase playing fields, pocket parks and sporting facilities in 

the borough to enable residents to keep fit and active. 

 The Council and other decision makers to keep under review new 

environmental initiatives and best practices as these come forward. 

  

Page 55



 

For action by residents, businesses and community groups 

 

No survey has been conducted to determine the extent to which these 

recommendations have been implemented. 

 

 A public education campaign is needed to raise awareness of the impact of 

individual behaviour on air quality. 

 Businesses and community organisations to promote and encourage car 

sharing schemes among employees and service users. 

 Schools to involve pupils in greening initiatives as a means of both improving 

their local environment and educating the next generation on the importance 

of urban ecology. 

 More children to walk to school. 

 More people to take up cycling to travel around the borough and beyond. 

 Boilers to be replaced by ultra-low NOx boilers. 

 A public education programme on what it means to live in a Smoke Control 

Area. 

 More local residents to become ‘Citizen Scientists’ and use personal air 

quality monitors around the borough. 

 

 

 

 

HPS/DVS/LBHF 

June 2017 

Page 56



 

 London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham  

Air Quality Annual Status Report for 2015 
Date of publication:  01 August 2016 

 

 
 
This report provides a detailed overview of air quality in the London Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham during 2015. It has been produced to meet the requirements of the London Local Air Quality 
Management statutory process1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact details 
 

Elizabeth Fonseca 
Environmental Quality Manager 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
5th Floor Town Hall Extension 
King Street 
Hammersmith 
SW6 9JU 
airquality@lbhf.gov.uk 
www.lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
1 

LLAQM Policy and Technical Guidance 2016 (LLAQM.TG(16)). https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we- 
do/environment/pollution-and-air-quality/working-boroughs 

Page 57

mailto:airquality@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/
http://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-


 

CONTENTS  

Abbreviations ........................................................................................................................................ 3 

1.  Air Quality Monitoring .................................................................................................................. 5 

1.1  Locations ............................................................................................................................... 6 

1.2 Comparison of Monitoring Results with AQOs ..................................................................... 9 

2.  Action to Improve Air Quality ..................................................................................................... 13 

2.1 Air Quality Action Plan Progress ......................................................................................... 15 

3.  Planning Update and Other New Sources of Emissions .............................................................. 29 

3.1 New or significantly changed industrial or other sources .................................................. 29 

Appendix A  Details of Monitoring Site QA/QC ............................................................................... 30 

A.1 Automatic Monitoring Sites ................................................................................................ 30 

A.2 Diffusion Tube Quality Assurance / Quality Control ........................................................... 30 

Appendix B  Full Monthly Diffusion Tube Results for 2015 ............................................................. 33 

 

Tables 

Table A.  Summary of National Air Quality Standards and Objectives ............................................ 4 

Table B.  Details of Automatic Monitoring Sites for 2015 ............................................................... 6 

Table C. Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites for 2015 ....................................................... 7 

Table D. Annual Mean NO2 Ratified and Bias-adjusted Monitoring Results (g m-3) ................... 9 

Table E.  NO2 Automatic Monitor Results: Comparison with 1-hour Mean Objective ................ 11 

Table F.  Annual Mean PM10 Automatic Monitoring Results (g m-3) ....................................... 11 

Table G. PM10 Automatic Monitor Results: Comparison with 24-Hour Mean Objective ............ 12 

Table J. Commitment to Cleaner Air Borough Criteria.............................................................. 13 

Table K. Delivery of Air Quality Action Plan Measures ............................................................... 15 

Table N. NO2 Diffusion Tube Results ........................................................................................... 31 

 

Figures 

Figure 1 - Map of AQMA Boundary (whole borough)........................................................................... 5 

Figure 2 - Map of Automatic Monitoring Site ....................................................................................... 6 

Figure 3 -  Map of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites ............................................................................ 7 

  

Page 58



 

Abbreviations 

  

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan 

AQMA Air Quality Management Area 

AQO Air Quality Objective 

BEB Buildings Emission Benchmark 

CAB Cleaner Air Borough 

CAZ Central Activity Zone 

EV Electric Vehicle 

GLA Greater London Authority 

LAEI London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory 

LAQM Local Air Quality Management 

LLAQM London Local Air Quality Management 

NRMM Non-Road Mobile Machinery 

PM10 Particulate matter less than 10 micron in diameter 

PM2.5 Particulate matter less than 2.5 micron in diameter 

TEB Transport Emissions Benchmark 

TfL Transport for London 

Page 59



 

Table A.  Summary of National Air Quality Standards and Objectives 

 
Pollutant 

 
Objective (UK) 

 
Averaging Period 

 

Date1
 

Nitrogen dioxide - NO2 200 g m-3 not to be exceeded more 
than 18 times a year 

1-hour mean 31 Dec 2005 

40 g m-3
 Annual mean 31 Dec 2005 

Particles - PM10 50 g m-3 not to be exceeded more 
than 35 times a year 

24-hour mean 31 Dec 2004 

40 g m-3
 Annual mean 31 Dec 2004 

Particles - PM2.5 25 g m-3
 Annual mean 2020 

Target of 15% reduction in 
concentration at urban background 
locations 

3 year mean Between 2010 
and 2020 

Sulphur Dioxide (SO2) 266 μg m-3 not to be exceeded more 
than 35 times a year 

15 minute mean 31 Dec 2005 

350 μg m-3 not to be exceeded more 
than 24 times a year 

1 hour mean 31 Dec 2004 

125 μg m-3 mot to be exceeded 
more than 3 times a year 

24 hour mean 31 Dec 2004 

Note: 
1
by which to be achieved by and maintained thereafter 

Page 60



 

Figure 1 - Map of AQMA Boundary (whole borough) 

 

 

Page 61



 

1.  Air Quality Monitoring 

1.1 Locations 
 

Table B.  Details of Automatic Monitoring Sites for 2015 

Site ID Site Name X (m) Y (m) Site Type In 
AQMA? 

Distance from 
monitoring site 
to relevant 

exposure (m) 

Distance to kerb 
of nearest road 
(N/A if not 

applicable) (m) 

Inlet 
height 
(m) 

Pollutants 
monitored 

Monitoring 
technique 

HF4 Shepherd’s Bush 523313 179900 Urban Roadside Y 1 2.0 2.0 NO2, PM10 TEOM / 
Chemiluminescent; 
  

Figure 2 - Map of Automatic Monitoring Site 

 

 

P
age 62



 

Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites 

During 2015, 15 diffusion tubes were used to monitor NO2 levels at 8 roadside sites and 7 background sites, as 

shown in the map and table below. 

Figure 3 -  Map of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites 

Page 63



 

Table C. Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites for 2015 

Site ID Site Name X (m) Y (m) Site Type In 
AQMA? 

Distance from 
monitoring site to 
relevant exposure 

(m) 

Distance to kerb 
of nearest road (N/A 

if not applicable) 
(m) 

Inlet 
height 

(m) 

Pollutants 
monitored 

Tube co-located 
with an 

automatic 
monitor? (Y/N) 

HF32 Hammersmith 
Broadway 

523327 178484 
Urban 

Roadside 

Y 1 4 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF44 Eel Brook 
Common 

525413 176828 
Urban 

Background 

Y 1 50 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF45 Bryony  
Road 

522479 180656 
Urban 

Background 
Y 6 1 3.0 

NO2 
N 

HF47 
Wulfstan Street 521984 181132 

Urban 
Background 

Y 13 1 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF50 Fulham 
Broadway 

525197 177302 
Urban 

Roadside 

Y 15 2 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF53 Addison 
Gardens 

523813 179491 
Urban 

Background 

Y 5 1 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF54 Westway  
A40 

522548 180960 
Urban 

Roadside 

Y 20 3 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF61 
Uxbridge Road 522861 180061 

Urban 
Roadside 

Y 3 1 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF63 
Talgarth Road 524150 178363 

Urban 
Roadside 

Y 14 1 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF66 
Radipole Road 524680 176880 

Urban 
Background 

Y 4 1 3.0 
NO2 

N 

HF62 
Cardross street 522750 179150 

Urban 
Background 

Y 3 1 2.47 
NO2 

N 

HF65 Fulham Palace 
Road 

523890 176970 
Urban Road-

side 

Y 6 1 2.58 
NO2 

N 

HF48 
Lillie Road 524620 177680 

Urban Road-
side 

Y 4 1 2.55 
NO2 

N 

HF64 North End 
Road 

524770 178150 
Urban Road-

side 

Y 13 1 2.67 
NO2 

N 

HF60 
Waldo Road 522550 182790 

Urban Back-
ground 

Y 4 1 2.46 
NO2 

N 

P
age 64



 

1.2 Comparison of Monitoring Results with AQOs 

 
The results presented are after adjustments for “annualisation” and for distance to a location of relevant public exposure, the details of which are described 
in Appendix A. 

 
Table D. Annual Mean NO2 Ratified and Bias-adjusted Monitoring Results (g m-3) 

 
 

Site ID 

 
 

Site type 

Valid data 
capture for 
monitoring 

period % a 

 

Valid data 
capture 
2015 % b 

Annual Mean Concentration (μgm-3) 
 

2009 

(DT BAF = .92) 

 
2010  

(DT BAF =.93) 

 
2011 

(DT BAF =.94) 

 
2012  

(DT BAF =1.01) 

 
2013 

(DT BAF =1.14) 

 
2014  

(DT BAF =1.03) 

 
2015  

(DT BAF =1.07) 

HF4  

Automatic 
Roadside 

 

95 
 

95 
 

No data 
 

No data 
 

No data 
 

92 
 

76.2 
 

80.3 
 

76 

HF32 DT - Urban 

Roadside 

100 100 72 72 64 77 89.55 78.83 77.51 

HF44 DT - Urban 

Background 

100 100 33 33 26 35 37.89 29.61 28.48 

HF45 DT - Urban 

Background 

100 100 35 35 27 36 42.60 35.11 34.05 

HF47 DT - Urban 

Background 

100 100 42 38 35 41 49.66 46.01 45.36 

HF50 DT - Urban 

Roadside 

100 100 71 64 61 71 75.34 64.97 60.26 

HF53 DT - Urban 

Background 

100 100 35 34 27 36 41.61 32.53 32.57 

HF54 DT - Urban 

Roadside 

100 100 69 70 54 77 98.42 80.67 76.58 

HF61 DT - Urban 

Roadside 

100 100 44 42 35 43 50.10 45.81 45.90 

HF63 DT - Urban 

Roadside 

91 91 58 59 48 56 65.16 56.10 49.84 

HF66 DT - Urban 

Background 

100 100 34 34 27 33 38.07 33.24 31.51 

HF62 DT - Urban 

Background 

100 100 - - - - 34.69c 31.81 30.69 

HF65 DT - Urban Road-

side 

100 100 - - - - 63.60c 57.69 57.07 

HF48 DT - Urban Road-

side 

100 100 - - - - 50.47c 49.08 

 

44.47 

P
age 65



 

-3 

 
 

Site ID 

 
 

Site type 

Valid data 
capture for 
monitoring 

period % a 

 

Valid data 
capture 
2015 % b 

Annual Mean Concentration (μgm-3) 
 

2009 

(DT BAF = .92) 

 
2010  

(DT BAF =.93) 

 
2011 

(DT BAF =.94) 

 
2012  

(DT BAF =1.01) 

 
2013 

(DT BAF =1.14) 

 
2014  

(DT BAF =1.03) 

 
2015  

(DT BAF =1.07) 

HF64 DT - Urban Road-

side 

100 100 - - - - 64.64c 58.59 

 

54.77 

HF60 DT - Urban Back-

ground 

100 100 - - - - 42.80c 39.24 

 

37.60 

Notes: Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μgm 
-3 

are shown in bold. 
2 

NO2 annual means in excess of 60 μg m , indicating a potential exceedance of the NO hourly mean AQS objective are shown in bold and underlined. 
a 

data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year 
b 

data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for six months the maximum data capture for the full calendar year would be 50%) 
c 

Means should be “annualised” in accordance with LLAQM Technical Guidance, if valid data capture is less than 75% 
DT = Diffusion Tube 

BAF = Bias Adjustment Factor 

 

P
age 66



 
 

-3 

-3 

Table E.  NO2 Automatic Monitor Results: Comparison with 1-hour Mean Objective 

 
 

Site ID 

Valid data 
capture for 
monitoring 

period % a 

 

Valid data 
capture 
2015 % b

 

Number of Hourly Means > 200 μgm-3
 

 
2009 

 
2010  

 
2011 

 
2012  

 

2013cd
 

 

2014 cd
 

 
2015  

HF4 89 89 No data No data No data 74 11(203.1) 0 (179.1) 19 

Notes: Exceedance of the NO2 short term AQO of 200 μgm over the permitted 18 days per year are shown in bold. 
A 

data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year 
b 

data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for six months the maximum data capture for the full calendar year would be 50%) 
c 

Means should be “annualised” in accordance with LLAQM Technical Guidance, if valid data capture is less than 75% 
dMeans the 99.8th percentile of hourly means in brackets as the period of valid data was less than 90% 

 
 
 
 
Table F.  Annual Mean PM10 Automatic Monitoring Results (g m-3) 

 
 

Site ID 

Valid data 
capture for 
monitoring 

period % a 

 

Valid data 
capture 
2015 % b

 

Annual Mean Concentration (μgm-3) 
 

2009 

 
2010  

 
2011 

 
2012  

 

2013c
 

 

2014 c 

 
2015  

HF4 87 87 No data No data No data 38 36.4 26.5 25 

Notes: Exceedance of the PM10 annual mean AQO of 40 μgm are shown in bold. 
a 

data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year 
b 

data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for six months the maximum data capture for the full calendar year would be 50%) 
c 

Means should be “annualised” in accordance with LLAQM Technical Guidance, if valid data capture is less than 75% 
 

P
age 67



 

10 

Table G. PM10 Automatic Monitor Results: Comparison with 24-Hour Mean Objective 

 
 

Site ID 

Valid data 
capture for 
monitoring 

period % a 

 

Valid data 
capture 
2015 % b

 

Number of Daily Means > 50 μgm-3
 

 
2009 

 
2010  

 
2011 

 
2012  

 
2013cd 

 
2014cd  

 
2015  

HF4 87 87 No data No data No data 67 33 (59.5) 0 (38.2) 10 

Notes: Exceedance of the PM    short term AQO of 50 μg m
-3

 over the permitted 35 days per year or where the 90.4th percentile exceeds 50 μg m
-3

are shown in bold. 
a 

data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year 
b 

data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for six months the maximum data capture for the full calendar year would be 50%) 
c 

Means should be “annualised” in accordance with LLAQM Technical Guidance, if valid data capture is less than 75% 
d 90th percentile of 24-hour means in brackets where data capture is less than 90% 

 

 

 

P
age 68



 

2.  Action to Improve Air Quality 

 
Table J.  Commitment to Cleaner Air Borough Criteria 

 

Theme 
 

Criteria 
 

Achieved (Y/N) 
 

Evidence  

 

1. Political 
leadership 

 

1.a 
 

Pledged to become a Cleaner Air for London Borough (at cabinet level) by 
taking significant action to improve local air quality and signing up to specific 
delivery targets. 

 

Y 
 

No evidence required 

 

1.b 
 

Provided an up-to-date Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP), fully incorporated into 
LIP funding and core strategies. 

 

Y 
The Council’s Air Quality Action Plan is 
available online at 
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/secti
on_attachments/air-action-plan.pdf 

Incorporated into LIP process/public health 
via a number of projects including using LIP to 
match fund MAQF projects including integrating 
greening measures to improve local air quality 
and sustainable drainage along a busy road in 
Hammersmith Town Centre. Regular programme 
Transport/Highways LIP meetings are held with 
air quality officers to discuss how air quality may 
be embedded in other LIP projects. 

 

2. Taking action 
 

2.a 
 

Taken decisive action to address air pollution, especially where human 
exposure and vulnerability (e.g. schools, older people, hospitals etc.) is highest. 

 

Y 
 

Running a public health project focusing on 
increasing communication and liaison with front 
line health caregivers providing advice to 
vulnerable people in the borough who suffer from 
heart and lung diseases. 

 

2.b 
 

Developed plans for business engagement (including optimising deliveries and 
supply chain), retrofitting public buildings using the RE:FIT framework, 
integrating no engine idling awareness raising into the work of civil enforcement 
officers, (etc etc) 

 

Y 
 

Working closely with the Hammersmith Business 
Improvement District including work on the 
Hammersmith Town Centre greening project 
identified in 1.b and the Clean Air Better Business 
programme 

 

2.c 
 

Integrated transport and air quality, including by improving traffic flows on 
borough roads to reduce stop/start conditions 

 

Y 
 

Installation of a 20mph speed limit on roads 
in the borough has been implemented.  The 
Council have implemented a number of 
measures to improve traffic flow including 
countdown at pedestrian crossings. 

 

2.d 
 

Made additional resources available to improve local air quality, including by 
pooling its collective resources (s106 funding, LIPs, parking revenue, etc). 

 

Y 
 

LIP match funding on air quality projects 
including the MAQF dust suppression project at 
around waste transfer stations and residential 
roads in the north of the borough 

P
age 69

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/air-action-plan.pdf
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/air-action-plan.pdf


 

 

Theme 
 

Criteria 
 

Achieved (Y/N) 
 

Evidence  

 

3. Leading by 
example 

 

3.a 
 

Invested sufficient resources to complement and drive action from others 
 

Y 
 

Secured S106 funding for officers to deal with Air 
Quality planning submissions and monitoring at 
major sites in the borough including the Earls 
Court Opportunity Area and Thames Tideway 
Tunnel sites. 

 

3.b 
 

Maintained an appropriate monitoring network so that air quality impacts within 
the borough can be properly understood 

 

Y 
 

All existing AQ monitors maintained 

 
 

3.c 
 

Reduced emissions from council operations, including  from buildings, vehicles 
and all activities. 

 

Y 
 

Evidence of any reduction in council emissions 
if known: Actions 4 and 11 below 

 

3.d 
 

Adopted a procurement code which reduces emissions from its own and its 
suppliers activities, including from buildings and vehicles operated by and on 
their behalf (e.g. rubbish trucks). 

 

Y 
 

All contracted heavy goods refuse vehicles 
meet Euro V standards and emissions of Nox 
are predicted to have decreased – see Table K 
Action 11 below 

 

4. Using the 
planning system 

 

4.a 
 

Fully implemented the Mayor's policies relating to air quality neutral, combined 
heat and power and biomass. 

 

Y 
 

All approved planning applications must meet 
the Mayor’s requirements relating to AQ 
neutral and CHPs 

 

4.b 
 

Collected s106 from new developments to ensure air quality neutral 
development, where possible 

 

N 
 

Air quality contributions established in CIL and 
S106 contributions being pursued. 

 

4.c 
 

Provided additional enforcement of construction and demolition guidance, with 
regular checks on medium and high risk building sites. 

 

Y 
 

Major sites are visited during demolition 
and construction works to ensure policies 
are being met 

 

5. Integrating air 
quality into the 
public health 
system 

 

5 
 

Included air quality in the borough’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy and/or the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

 

Y 
 

Air quality is integral in the joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021 currently in 
consultation: 
https://lbhf.citizenspace.com/adult-social-
care/jhwsconsultation/supporting_documents/D
RAFT%20hf%20jhws%20v0.15.pdf 
  

6. Informing the 
public 

 

6.a 
 

Raised awareness about air quality locally 
 

Y 
 

airTEXT promotion on website and public 
events (See Table K – Action 28) 

 

  

P
age 70

https://lbhf.citizenspace.com/adult-social-care/jhwsconsultation/supporting_documents/DRAFT%20hf%20jhws%20v0.15.pdf
https://lbhf.citizenspace.com/adult-social-care/jhwsconsultation/supporting_documents/DRAFT%20hf%20jhws%20v0.15.pdf
https://lbhf.citizenspace.com/adult-social-care/jhwsconsultation/supporting_documents/DRAFT%20hf%20jhws%20v0.15.pdf


 

2.1 Air Quality Action Plan Progress 

 
Table K provides a brief summary of the London Borough o f  Hammersmith and Fulham progress against the Air Quality Action Plan, showing 
progress made this year. New projects which commenced in 2015 are shown at the bottom of the table. 

Table K. Delivery of Air Quality Action Plan Measures 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

1. Encourage improved availability of 
alternative fuels 

a) The council has installed 14 new on street electric 
charging points in February 2016. 

b) Development control requires that all new 
developments providing off street parking provide a 
minimum of 20% active and 20% passive EV charging 
points. 

 

There are plans to increase this 
number over the next year as initial 
data showed good usage of the first 
phase of sites. 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

2. Provide incentives for use of alternative 
fuels 
 
  

The council in coordination with resident groups is reviewing 
the existing parking permit policies. A motion to introduce 
parking permits based on a sliding scale of emissions has 
been proposed to members and is currently being reviewed. 

 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

3. Promote travel plans to encourage a 
switch to low emission vehicles 

Workplace and school travel plans continue to be 
conditioned as part of the planning process. 

 

P
age 71



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

4. Reduce emissions from the council fleet 
 
  

a) The  Council  is developing a safer Lorries and Vans 
Strategy for 2016-17, and has been working with 
Westrans on a Freight Strategy for the Westrans area. 

b) FORS status is being investigated.. See also Action Point 
17. 

c) Six most recent vehicles leased by H&F use stop/start 
technology 

 

Council offer monthly ‘Dr Bike’ sessions for staff to 

encourage cycling.  Mayor’s cycle hire pool access for council 

staff also made available. 

 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

5. Seek a reduction in emissions from the 
bus fleet 
  

In 2015/16, Route 211 running between Hammersmith to 
Waterloo was added to the list of new Routemasters. 
The following routes serving LBHF have varying proportions 
of their fleet offering hybrid buses ;- 
Route 7,9,10,11,22,27,49,93,94,148,211 and 295 

As part of Neighbourhoods of the 
Future project, the council are 
investigating electric bus charging for 
Hammersmith Town Centre. 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

6. Encourage the use of vehicles with 
smaller, more efficient engines 
 
 

Specifically targeting a certain size of combustion engine has 
been replaced by a push towards alternative energy sources 
to the combustion engine 

See Action 2 regarding parking permit 
policies. 

P
age 72



 
 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

7. Seek to reduce emissions from larger 
vehicles (Low Emission Zone) 
 

a) There are ongoing discussions with TfL/GLA about the 
size and scope of the ULEZ and whether LBHF will be 
included within the area. 

 
b) Westrans are pursuing the establishment of a 

consolidation centre which will serve LBHF 

The council have been having 
discussions with Westfield Shopping 
Centre and Olympia as well as 
working with the Hammersmith BID 
encouraging and advising how they 
may consolidate and reduce  their 
freight deliveries 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

8. Seek to reduce emissions from badly 
maintained vehicles 

No emissions test have been conducted.  

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

9. Encourage more environmentally 
friendly driving behaviour 

A 20mph trial was undertaken and recommendations made 

to implement a significant extension of the 20 mph speed 

limit.  

a) The council are also planning to also given to carry out 
initial design and consultation on a range of measures to 
support a reduced speed limit in certain roads.  

 

 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

10. Seek a reduction in emissions of small 
particles from construction sites 
 
 

a) Complaints of dust nuisance investigated as and 
when reported. 80 complaints were received in 2015/2016 
about construction / demolition dust.  Informal 
warning/advice is usually effective in securing 
improvements. 

 
b) We continue to require demolition and construction 
management plans for major development sites, including 
the submission of a dust risk assessment as well as measures 
to minimise dust emissions and are required to follow the 
London Mayor’s “The Control of Dust and Emissions During 
Construction and Demolition SPG, 2014.’  This includes the 
requirements to meet NRMM criteria. 

 

P
age 73



               
 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

11. Seek a reduction in emissions from 
domestic and commercial properties 
 
 
 
 
 

a) In 2015/16, 33 home composters were ordered and 
distributed via Straight PLC 

 

b) The community composting on Queen Caroline estate is 
continuing and is now self-sufficiently being managed by 
the community. 

 

c) In 20015/16 the following green waste was sent for 
composting:  

- 75 tonnes of Christmas trees 
- 0 tonnes of leaf fall from public highways were 

composted after the Environment Agency 
reclassified the materials in 2013. 

 

d) The current heavy goods fleet on the Serco contract are 
London Low Emissions compliant with a minimum of 
Euro 5 engines and Eminox exhaust systems fitted.  5 
new Refuse Collection Vehicles are Euro 6 engines and 
exceed the emission scheme. 

 
e) There are 2 x electric 3.5t cage vehicles which are 

operated at night and early mornings to help reduce 
noise pollution. 

 
f) The mechanical Scarab sweeping fleet have all been 

replaced with Euro 6 engines '15 plate vehicles 
 
g) 3 x 7.5tonne cage vehicles have been replaced with new 

Mitsubishi Canter Hybrid vehicles. 
 
h) The oldest vehicles remaining on the fleet are the refuse 

collection '58 plate vehicles which have been undergoing 
a  refurbishment programme over the 18 months to 
ensure that  

 

P
age 74



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

  
 
 
 
 

they are appearing neatly and will last for a further 5 
years. As previously stated they are all Euro 5 and 
Eminox exhaust fitted.  This should be completed in April 
2017. 

 
i) In 2015/2016 there were 76 complaints about smoke 

from commercial/domestic properties, including from 
bonfires.  No abatement notices were served. 

 
j) There has been a steady decline in electricity usage by 

the Council’s building stock and a reduction in overall 
CO2 emissions as a result of this and the council 
resourcing energy from more renewable sources.  The 
time period of May 2015 through April 2016 saw CO2 
decrease by 16% from electric sources and 9 percent 
from gas sources compared to the time period between 
May 2014 and April 2015. 

 
k) The council have begun a review of  the energy 

efficiency of its stock to compile a list of improvement 
that can be implemented to further reduce energy 
consumption. 

 

P
age 75



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Reducing 
Emissions at 
its source 

12. Seek to control and minimise 
emissions from industrial premises 

Regulation duties continued in line with the LAPPC 
requirements. No complaints were received in 2015/16 
regarding emissions from industrial sites regulated by the 
council. No notices were served. 
 
Two nuisance complaints were received for two Part A PPC 
sites, one a metal recycling station and the other a waste 
transfer station.  These were addressed and passed to the 
Environment Agency as the enforcing authority. 
 

 

Reducing the 
Need to 
Travel 

13. Sustain and improve town & local 
centres, facilities and employment areas 

a) In January 2015 we consulted on a draft Local Plan which 
outlines the council’s vision and preferred options for 
development in the borough for the next 20 years. It 
includes the identification of five key regeneration areas, 
strategic sites for development and options for policies 
on topics such as transport, town centres, the local 
economy and environmental issues. 

 
b) Policies continue to encourage the continued 

regeneration of the borough’s town centres to ensure 
the continued provision of a wide range of high quality 
retailing, services, arts and cultural and other leisure 
facilities to serve local residents, visitors and workers. 

 
c) The next draft of the Local Plan will be consulted on in 

summer 2016. 
 

The council are working with a 
residents group to form a 
Hammersmith Town Centre SPD – 
which looks to minimise town centre 
traffic with the potential 
pedestrianisation of the 
Hammersmith gyratory. 

P
age 76



 
 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Reducing the 
Need to 
Travel 

14. Seek to reduce the air quality impact 
of new development 

The wording of our air quality policy within our Draft Local 
Plan is currently under consultation and has been amended 
in order to include all developments that have the potential 
to impact or be impacted by local air quality (previously 
restricted to major developments).  The basis of a number of 
transport policies has had air quality woven into its purpose 
in this Draft Local plan going through the consultation 
process.  The current policy continues to be implemented on 
all relevant planning applications.  Our Supplementary 
Planning Guidance is also under review and the council plans 
to imbed the importance of air quality into it. 
 
Construction logistics plans are required on most 
developments which require details on how  delivery hours 
will be managed to reduce impact and the need for 
stationary vehicles and potential idling 

 

Encouraging 
a Switch to 
Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

15. Promotion of bus services a) No new bus services were introduced in LBHF during 
2015/16 but improvements in frequency/ reliability were 
secured for routes 266 and 487. 

 
b) Bus services are promoted on the council website. The 

council have implemented a new refreshed and easy to 
use mobile website. 

Bus passengers are continuing to 
benefit from improvements to real 
time information at bus stops and 
through increasingly used smart 
phone apps. 

P
age 77



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Encouraging 
a Switch to 
Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

16. Promotion of other forms of public 
transport 
 
  

The council have been working with local community 
transport providers to promote Taxicard and Dial-a-Ride and 
other similar projects.  
 
The council’s website has been improved for use on mobile 
devices including the councils Transport pages giving users 
information on alternate modes of travel to driving. 
 
 

 

P
age 78



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Encouraging 
a Switch to 
Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

17. Promotion of cycling 
 
  

a) The new Cycling Strategy was launched in September 
2015 with an overall aim of getting 8% of  all trips made 
by our residents, made by bike. The Strategy also 
highlighted the development of new dedicated and 
segregated cycle lanes through Hammersmith Gyratory, 
a new cycle Superhighway (9) from Kensington Olympia 
to Chiswick, a cycle Quietway from east Acton to 
Kensington along the edge of Wormwood scrubs, and a 
proposed Superhighway along the A40 Westway. The 
residential parking scheme has continued with 3 
Bikehanger units supplied to Fulham Court. 20 cycle 
stands were also installed at the request of residents. 
New cycle lanes have been installed along Uxbridge 
Road and Goldhawk road. 

b) A SUD scheme was built along Talgarth Road which 
incorporated a sustainable cycle track and planting 
aimed to reduce air pollutants. 

c) The programme of cycle training and maintenance 
classes continued along with the award – winning 
“Exchanging Places” scheme to reduce conflict between 
cyclists and large goods vehicles. 

d) The Council is investigating its  FORS  status. 
 

 

P
age 79



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Encouraging a 
Switch to Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

18. Promotion of Walking 
 
 

b) An example of decluttering involved improvements 
carried out at the junction of Stamford Brook and Emlyn 
Road where unnecessary  guard railing was removed 

c) A 20mph trial was undertaken and recommendations 
made to implement a significant extension of the 20 
mph speed limit. This will make walking much more 
attractive. 

d) The council are also planning to also given to carry out 
initial design and consultation on a range of measures to 
support a reduced speed limit in certain roads.  

 

 

Encouraging a 
Switch to Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

19. Encourage a reduction in car use for 
the journey to school 

Of the 78 schools in the Borough, 56 have a “valid” (.i.e. 
active and reviewed in the last 12 months) travel plan. 
Under the STAR.( School Travel Accredited and Recognised) 
online award scheme. The following levels have been 
recognised :- 
19 engaged 
45 Bronze 
1 Silver 
3 Gold 
 

 

P
age 80



 
 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Encouraging a 
Switch to Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

20. Encourage a reduction in car use for 
the journey to work and business trips 
 
 

Workplace travel plans continue to be conditioned for any 
new developments. 
 
We have signed up to have a pool cycle hire for HF 
employees 

 

Encouraging a 
Switch to Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

21. Control provision of on and off street 
parking to deter car commuting into and 
within the borough 
 
 

Council has started introducing parking controls on housing 
estates to remove availability of uncontrolled publically 
accessible urban parking areas. 

a) The changes introduced in the local plan will reduce 
the number of new developments eligible for on 
street parking permits. 
 

b) LBHF have introduced extended parking controls in 
three CPZs designed to reduce the availability of free 
parking for weekend visitors. 

 

Encouraging a 
Switch to Less 
Polluting 
Forms of 
Transport 

22. Encourage freight to be transported in 
a sustainable manner 

Working in partnership with Westrans for the provision of a 

freight consolidation centre in West London which would be 

accessible to LBHF businesses. 

See further information under 
measure 7. 

P
age 81



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Make a More 
Efficient Use 
of Road 
Transport 

23. Encourage car sharing 
 
  

We have been actively working with two car club operators, 
Zipcar and City Car Club to expand their existing on-street 
network. In September 2016 an additional 21 car club bays 
will be introduced on-street. 
 
We have been advised that all of Zipcars fleet of vehicles is 
already Euro 6 compliant and all of their diesel fleet of 
vehicles will be decommissioned by the end of 2016. 

 

Make a More 
Efficient Use 
of Road 
Transport 

24. Discourage short journeys 
 
  

Increased parking controls in several CPZs to discourage 
nonresident parking 
 
20mph speed limit trial was undertaken.  One aim is to make 
alternate modes of transport more ideal including for short 
journeys 
 

 

Other 
Measures to 
Reduce Road 
Traffic 
Emissions 

25. Reduce the amount of road traffic in 
residential areas and town centres 

The council are making plans to carry out initial design and 
consultation on a range of measures to support a reduced 
speed limit in certain roads.  
 
The council use local transport fund to change traffic 

management on local residential roads to reduce traffic 

including a popular cut through associated with A4 traffic - 

Margravine Gardens 

A 20mph trial was undertaken and recommendations made 

to implement a significant extension of the 20 mph speed 

limit. This will make alternate modes of transport much 

more attractive thus reducing traffic. 

 

The council are working with a 
residents group to form a 
Hammersmith Town Centre SPD – 
which looks to minimise town centre 
traffic with the potential 
pedestrianisation of the 
Hammersmith gyratory. 

P
age 82



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Other 
Measures to 
Reduce Road 
Traffic 
Emissions 

26. Promote the use of trees to help 
improve local air quality 
 
 

In 2015/16, the council planted  26 new street trees and 143 
replacement street trees – a total of 169 trees planted on 
highway sites. 1 new tree and 13 replacement trees were 
planted on housing estates. 
A total of 420 new trees have been planted in parks and 
cemeteries. 

 

Other 
Measures to 
Reduce Road 
Traffic 
Emissions 

27. Reduce the amount of traffic on the A4 
and A40 

The council are working with TfL on the extension to the 
East-West Cycle Superhighway which would take a lane off 
of the elevated section of the A40 from White City to 
Paddington. 
 
Council working with resident groups to future proof the 
town centre including the pedestrianisation of the gyratory 
and the fly-under of the A40 

 

Raise 
Awareness of 
the Links 
Between Air 
Quality and 
Health 

28. Provide information to allow people to 
make informed choices about travel 
behaviour 

There are now 232 subscribers for AirTEXT pollution alerts 
relating to LBHF.  The majority of these subscribers receive 
alerts by text message. 
 
In the period between April 2015 – March  2016, 70 users 
subscribed to the airTEXT service, there were 141 text alert 
users, 30 voice alert users and 61 email alert users. 
 
AQ officers assisted in air quality teaching sessions to 
contribute to the LBHF event ‘Children’s Parliament on the 
Environment 2015’ 

 

P
age 83



 

 
Measure 

 
Action 

 
Progress 

 Emissions/Concentration data 

 Benefits 

 Negative impacts / Complaints 

 
 

 
Further information 

Raise 
Awareness of 
the Links 
Between Air 
Quality and 
Health 

29. Provide information so people can 
make informed choices about reducing 
pollution from domestic activities 

No new publicity material produced.  

Raise 
Awareness of 
the Links 
Between Air 
Quality and 
Health 

30. Continue to monitor air quality and 
make info. available 

Real time monitoring at Shepherds Bush Green of NO2 and 
PM10 continue.  The station measured an annual mean of 
NO2 concentration of 76 µg/m3 and there were 19 
exceedences of the hourly objective.    The station measured 
an annual mean of PM10 below the national objective at 25 
µg/m3 with 10 daily means exceeding the 50 µg/m3 short 
term objective.  

 

P
age 84



 

3.  Planning Update and Other New Sources of Emissions 

 
No planning update for this year 

 

3.1 New or significantly changed industrial or other sources 
  
No new sources identified

Page 85



 

Appendix A  Details of Monitoring Site QA/QC 

 
A.1 Automatic Monitoring Sites 

 
The council’s automatic monitoring station is part of the London Air Quality Network (LAQN), which is 
run by the Environmental Research Group at King’s College London. All real-time data from the 
monitoring station is therefore independently collected and validated on a daily basis. A combination 
of automatic and manual checks is used to assess data, identify and diagnose potential equipment 
faults and adjust data to take account of calibration tests. Automatic overnight calibrations are 
supplemented with regular manual calibrations of analysers. The procedures used conform to the 
requirements of the UK Automatic Urban and Rural Network Management and Co-ordination Units. 
 
All data is also formally ratified. During this process the validation decisions can be ratified with the 
benefit of hindsight and using greater information, such as service records, calibration records and the 
results of station audits. Station audits are carried out every 6 months by the National Physical 
Laboratory, which is UKAS (United Kingdom Accreditation Service) accredited.  

 
 

PM10 Monitoring Adjustment 
 
All PM10 data presented in this report have been corrected to gravimetric equivalent using the Volatile 

Correction Model. 

 
 
A.2 Diffusion Tube Quality Assurance / Quality Control 

 
Diffusion tube analysis is carried out in Gradko’s UKAS accredited laboratory. They use a 50% in 
Acetone preparation method.  Their limit of detection is 0.066μg NO2. Laboratory preparation and 
analysis of the tubes is strictly controlled and Gradko participate in 2 major independent schemes to 
assess their performance.  
 

1) Workplace Analysis Scheme for Proficiency (WASP) and AIR PT 
 

Gradko participates in the AIR proficiency testing for NO2 diffusion tube scheme on a quarterly basis. 
AIR PT is a new scheme, started in April 2014, operated by LGC Standards and supported by the Health 
and Safety Laboratory (HSL). AIR PT has combined two long running proficiency testing schemes LGC 
Standards. STACKS PT scheme and HSL WASP PT scheme. AIR is a recognised performance-testing 
programme for labs undertaking NO2 diffusion tube analysis as part of the UK NO2 monitoring network. 
Further information on proficiency testing can be found at Defra’s Local Air Quality Management 
webpages.  
 
Table - Gradko International Laboratory Summary Performance for WASP/ AIR NO2 PT Rounds 006, 
007, 0010, 2015 
 
 

Round AIR PT 006 AIR PT 007 AIR PT 009 AIR PT 0010 

Round conducted 
in this period 

January-March 
2015 

April-May 2015 July-August 2015 October-
November 2015 

Gradko 
International 

100% 100% 100% 100% 

Page 86



 

 
2) Network Field Inter-comparison Exercise 
 
This exercise is operated by the National Physical Laboratory (NPL) and tests the performance of the 
diffusion tubes and lab analysis procedures and involves the regular exposure of a triplet of tubes at an 
Automatic Urban Network (AUN) site where real-time NO2 levels are also measured using a 
chemiluminescent analyser. 
 
Gradko operates well within the required level of performance in terms of accuracy and precision, as 

shown by the results below. The NPL performance criterion for precision is that the mean coefficient of 

variation for the full year should not exceed 10%, should this be achieved the precision is given a score 

of ‘good’. 

Summary of NO2 Network Field Inter-Comparison Results, 2015 

Annual Mean Bias  

Performance Target:   +25%  
Gradko Annual Mean Bias:  +6.4% 
 
Precision 

Performance Target:  10% 
Gradko Precision:   Good 
 
Gradko International Ltd performs blank exposures that serve as a quality control check on the tube 
preparation procedure.  

 
Factor from Local Co-location Studies (if available) 

 
Bureau Veritas conducts an ‘in-house’ co-location study to establish an LWEP bias-adjustment factor 
based on triplicate NO2 diffusion tubes located with a continuous analyser, for a number of local 
authorities.  The council does not have any NO2 diffusion tubes co-located with its real-time monitoring 
station. However a local bias adjustment factor calculated using data from the Royal Borough of 
Kensington and Chelsea AURN affiliated site at North Kensington was chosen to be used rather than 
the National Bias Adjustment Factor. 
 
Bias Adjustment Factor and % Bias of LWEP Co-Location Study 2015 

 Diffusion Tube Continuous 
Analyser 

Correction 
Factor (A) 

% Bias based 
on continuous 

monitor B 
North Kensington 28.3 30.1 1.07 -6 

LWEP Bloomsbury  42.2 48.2 1.14 -12 
Croydon, George Street 54.5 51.8 0.95 5 

Greenwich, Eltham 19.1 19.6 1.03 -3 

Greenwich, Trafalgar 35.0 35.5 1.01 -1 

Greenwich, Blackheath 46.3 39.3 0.84 19 

Greenwich, Westhorne Av 40.8 39.6 0.96 4 

Greenwich, Burrage 31.6 35.4 1.13 -12 

Greenwich, Woolwich Flyover 70.7 66.2 0.94 7 

Greenwich, Bexley Falconwood 51.7 41.4 0.80 25 

Overall % Bias    2.6 

Overall Bias Adjustment Factor   0.97  

 
 

Page 87



 

 
 
Table - Bias Adjustment Factors (BAF) used by LBHF 2009-2015 

Year BAF 

2009 0.92 

2010 0.93 

2011 0.94 

2012 1.01 

2013 1.14 

2014 1.03 

2015 1.07 

 

Discussion of Choice of Factor to Use 
 
The bias adjustment factor is calculated by Bureau Veritas using data collected at the Royal Borough of 
Kensington and Chelsea AURN affiliated site (this local bias adjustment factor was chosen over the 
National Bias Adjustment Factor as it is considered to be more representative of local conditions). The 
bias adjustment factor for 2015 has been calculated as 1.07.   

 

 
 

Page 88



 

Appendix B  Full Monthly Diffusion Tube Results for 2015 

TableN.  NO2 Diffusion Tube Results 

 
 
 

Site 
ID 

 
 
Valid data 
capture for 
monitoring 

period % 
a

 

 
 

Valid 
data 

capture 
2015 % 

b
 

Annual Mean NO2 

 

 
 

Jan 

 

 
 

Feb 

 

 
 

March 

 

 
 

Apr 

 

 
 

May 

 

 
 

June 

 

 
 

Jul 

 

 
 

Aug 

 

 
 

Sept 

 

 
 

Oct 

 

 
 

Nov 

 

 
 

Dec 

Annual 
mean 
– raw 
data  

Annual 
mean – 

bias 
adjusted  

HF32 100 100 56.88 75.01 66.43 76.19 65.46 77.60 74.30 78.24 77.60 80.10 75.92 65.54 72.44 77.51 

HF44 100 100 28.57 36.59 29.72 27.23 18.31 19.58 18.67 23.89 30.46 39.01 26.82 20.52 26.61 28.48 

HF45 100 100 33.78 38.76 29.51 31.20 26.69 25.52 24.42 28.09 36.12 39.63 36.93 31.24 31.82 34.05 

HF47 100 100 43.04 47.58 36.32 40.57 34.68 38.47 39.51 41.80 45.10 49.85 48.63 43.18 42.40 45.36 

HF50 100 100 58.09 58.08 46.51 60.86 53.74 57.05 58.32 60.76 59.68 56.95 52.05 53.76 56.32 60.26 

HF53 100 100 34.29 39.03 30.05 30.44 22.27 25.04 22.03 26.96 36.37 40.47 31.26 27.06 30.44 32.57 

HF54 100 100 70.74 83.46 72.23 100.98 64.10 37.65 64.55 68.01 88.91 104.81 59.44 43.97 71.57 76.58 

HF61 100 100 43.63 46.61 40.84 40.17 30.72 72.47 36.06 36.52 46.12 47.63 40.97 32.97 42.89 45.90 

HF63 91 91 42.24 58.44 48.85 57.05 42.74   48.25 48.61 60.40 69.99 46.80 35.59 46.58 49.84 

HF66 100 100 34.26 39.15 30.86 26.96 19.83 22.64 19.70 27.68 32.24 41.33 32.32 26.40 29.45 31.51 

HF62 100 100 33.87 36.30 27.48 27.26 20.30 23.24 22.90 25.29 31.38 39.00 31.43 25.68 28.68 30.69 

HF65 100 100 53.00 60.46 47.45 47.51 44.45 46.60 46.30 58.84 55.07 65.01 58.96 56.35 53.33 57.07 

HF48 100 100 45.73 45.03 39.51 41.86 31.21 38.30 30.50 42.87 46.18 56.50 44.53 36.53 41.56 44.47 

HF64 100 100 54.07 56.64 46.72 52.08 44.53 46.89 46.03 54.06 54.84 56.47 53.73 48.22 51.19 54.77 

HF60 100 100 45.33 44.84 32.23 31.33 27.43 29.43 30.63 30.98 26.57 41.38 47.77 33.81 35.14 37.60 

Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μgm-3 are shown in bold and means in excess of 60 μgm-3  indicating a potential exceedance of the NO hourly mean AQS objective are shown underlined. 
a data capture for the monitoring period, in cases where monitoring was only carried out for part of the year 
b data capture for the full calendar year (e.g. if monitoring was carried out for six months the maximum data capture for the full calendar year would be 50%) 
c Means should be “annualised” in accordance with LLAQM Technical Guidance, if valid data capture is less than 75% 

 

 

P
age 89



Community Safety, Environment and Residents Services PAC Work Programme 2017/18 
 

 

 

28th June 2017 

Courtyard Room, HTH. 7:00pm. 

ITEM LEAD OFFICER  REPORT BRIEF 

Parks 

 

Dave Page / 
Ullash Karia 

To talk about the options for the management of the 
borough’s parks. 

20 mph Zones 

 

Nick Boyle To consider the implementation of additional 20mph 
zones in the borough. 

Air Quality Elizabeth Fonseca 
/ Peter Smith / 
Nick Boyle 

To update the committee on progress since the Air 
Quality Commission’s report. 

 
 

18th September 2017 

Courtyard Room, HTH. 7:00pm. 

ITEM LEAD OFFICER  REPORT BRIEF 

Use of Powers under the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 
 
 
 

Janette Mullins / 
Claire Rai 

To consider the Council’s use of powers under RIPA 
over the past year and to make comment on whether 
the Council’s systems for regulating this use are 
effective and delivering appropriate outcomes. 

Uniform based street services Dave Page / Claire 
Rai 

To consider the work of the Council’s Neighbourhood 
Wardens.  

CCTV Dave Page To consider the Council’s CCTV network and its 
impact on crime and anti-social behaviour. 

 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 8



Community Safety, Environment and Residents Services PAC Work Programme 2017/18 
 

 

 

20th November 2017 

Courtyard Room, HTH. 7:00pm. 

ITEM LEAD OFFICER  REPORT BRIEF 

Biodiversity Commission 
 

Peter Smith To consider the report of the biodiversity comission. 
 

Highway Maintenance 

 

Ian Hawthorn 

 

To consider the Highway Maintenance programme 
and the effectiveness of the service. 

 
 

29th January 2018 

Small Hall, HTH. 7:00pm. 

 

7th March 2018 

Small Hall, HTH. 7:00pm. 

 

18th April 2018 

Committee Room 1, HTH. 7:00pm. 

 

P
age 91


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Parks Commission Report
	6 20MPH Speed Limit - Speed Surveys Results
	7 Air Quality Report
	Air Quality Appendix 1 - AQC Recommendations update
	Air Quality Appendix 2

	8 Work Programme and Dates of Future Meetings

